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ADDcn Technology Co., Ltd

2020 Annual General Sharcholders’ Meeting Agenda

Time: 9:00 am, June 18 (Thursday), 2020
Place: No. 40, Siyuan Road, Xinzhuang District, New Taipei City
Theater B (Amazing Hall-XinZhuang)

One. Announcement of the Number of Shares Represented in the Meeting
Two. Call the Meeting to Order
Three. Chairperson Remarks

Four. Report Items

() 2019 Business Report

(I1) 2019 Supervisors’ Audit Report

(111) 2019 Report on the Distribution of Remuneration to Directors/Supervisors
and Employee

(IV) Amendment Report of the “Procedures for Ethical Management and
Guidelines for Conduct” of the Company

(V) Amendment Report of the “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles” of the Company

Five. Ratification ltems
() 2019 Business Report and Financial Statements
(I1) 2019 Surplus Earning Distribution

Six. Discussions Items

(I) Cash Distribution of Capital Surplus

(1) Amendment to the “Articles of Incorporation” of the Company

(111) Amendment to the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meetings” of the
Company.

(IV) Amendment to the “Election Procedure of the Directors and Supervisors”
of the Company

(V) Issuance of New Restricted Employee Shares

Seven. Questions and Motions

Eight. Adjournment



[Report Items]

V.

2019 Business Report.
Descriptions:
Please refer to Attachment 1.

2019 Supervisors’ Audit Report.
Descriptions:
Please refer to Attachment 2.

2019 Report on the Distribution of Remuneration to Directors / Supervisors and
Employees.
Descriptions:

1. According to Article 20 of the Articles of Incorporation.

2. The distributed employee remuneration was NT$51,800,000 and the remuneration
to the directors and supervisors was NT$7,400,000 in 2019. All were distributed in
cash and had no discrepancies in the recognized amount in 2019.

. Amendment to the “Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for

Conduct” of the Company.

Descriptions:

To be in line with the laws and regulations and actual needs, the Company amended the
“Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles.” For the comparison table of
amendment to the “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles,” please
refer to Attachment 3.

Amendment to the “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles” of
the Company.

Descriptions:

To be in line with the laws and regulations and the actual needs, the Company amended
the “Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct.” For the
comparison table of amendments to the “Procedures for Ethical Management and
Guidelines for Conduct,” please refer to Attachment 4.



[Ratification Items]

Business Report and Financial Statements. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Descriptions:

1.

3.

The 2019 Business Report and Financial Statements have been approved by the
Board on March 12, 2020 and reviewed by the supervisors with the issuance of the
review report.

The financial statements mentioned above were audited by CPA Cheng-Chien Chen
and CPA Yung-Hua Huang of KPMG Taiwan, to which they have issued an
independent auditor’s report with unqualified opinion.

For the attached Business Report, Independent Auditor’s Audit Report and Financial
Statements mentioned above, please refer to Attachment 1 and 5.

Resolution:

2019 Surplus Earning Distribution. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Descriptions:

1.

2.

For the attached 2019 Surplus Earning Distribution Table, please refer to
Attachment 6.

The Company plans to attribute NT$519,421,100 from the distributable earnings of
2019 as cash dividend at NT$12.2 per share. The cash dividends is calculated and
truncated to the nearest NT$1. Fractions shall be summed and recognized by the
Company as other income.

Upon the approval of the shareholders’ meeting, the Chairman shall be authorized to
set the ex-dividends date, allocation date and other relevant issues.

If the total number of the outstanding shares is affected and the distribution yield
has changed due to the change in the capital stock of the Company, the shareholders’
meeting shall authorize the chairman to handle the matter with full powers based on
the Company Act and relevant regulations.

Resolution:

[Discussions Items]

Cash Distribution of Capital Surplus. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Descriptions:

1.

The Company plans to distribute NT$25,545,300 in cash, which is the capital
reserve of the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium.
According to the shareholding of shareholders in the roster of shareholders on the
distribution date, the cash dividend to be distributed is NT$0.6 per share and is
calculated and rounded off to the nearest NT$1; fractions shall be summed and
recognized by the Company as other income.

Upon the approval of the shareholders’ meeting, the Chairman shall be authorized to
set the record date of cash distribution, the allocation date and other relevant issues.
If the total number of the outstanding shares is affected and the cash distribution
yield of the shareholder has changed due to the change in the capital stock of the
Company, the shareholders’ meeting shall authorize the chairman to handle the
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matter with full powers based on the Company Act and relevant regulations.
Resolution:

Amendment to the “Articles of Incorporation” of the Company. (Proposed by the
Board of Directors).

Descriptions:

To be in line with the laws and regulations and actual needs, the Company amended the

“Articles of Incorporation.” For the comparison table of amendments to the “Articles of
Incorporation,” please refer to Attachment 7.

Resolution:

Amendment to the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meetings” of the
Company. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Descriptions:

To be in line with the laws and regulations and actual needs, the Company amended the
“Rules of Procedure for Sharcholder Meetings.” For the comparison table of
amendments to the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder Meetings,” please refer to
Attachment 8.

Resolution:

Amendment to the “Election Procedure of Directors and Supervisors” of the
Company. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Descriptions:

To be in line with the laws and regulations and actual needs, the Company amended the
“Election Procedure of Directors and Supervisors.” For the comparison table of
amendments to the “Election Procedure of Directors and Supervisors,” please refer to
Attachment 9.

Resolution:

Issuance of New Restricted Employee Shares. (Proposed by the Board of

Directors)

Descriptions:

1. The Company plans to issue new restricted employee shares based on Paragraph 8,
Article 267 of the Company Act and relevant regulations of the “Regulations
Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers.”

(1) Total issued amount: 424,000 new common shares at NT$10 per share,
totaling NT$4,240,000.
(2) Issuance conditions:
A. Issuance price: For the issuance of new shares to employees, the issuance
price is NT$0 per share.
B. \ested conditions: Those who meets the comprehensive indexes such as
the years of service and performance conditions regulated in the issuance
method of new restricted shares for employees.

C. Categories of issued shares: The common shares of the Company.
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3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

D. Actions taken when the employees fail to meet the vested conditions or in
the event of inheritance: For the new restricted shares distributed to the
employees, in case the employee fails to meet the vested conditions,
unless otherwise provided by the issuance method of new restricted
shares for employees of the Company, the Company will redeem all
shares gratuitously or buy back the issued restricted shares for
cancellation.

Qualifications of the employees and the numbers of shares distributed or

subscribed: The full-time employees of the Company who meet certain

performance as of the issuing date. By referring to the years of service, grading,
performance, overall contribution and other factors and considering the
operation needs and business development strategies of the Company, the

Company will plan the number of employees receiving the actual distribution

within the limited amount specified in the law based on the “issuance method

of new restricted shares for employees” and submit to the Board of Directors
for resolution.

The reasons why it is necessary to issue the new restricted employee shares:

To attract the talents required for the development of the Company or the

affiliated enterprise and increase the loyalty and sense of belonging of the

employee to jointly create the value of the Company, the Company plans to

issue new restricted shares to the employee based on Paragraph 8, Article 267

of the Company Act and relevant regulations of the “Regulations Governing

the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers.”

Possible amount expended: if the issuance price is gratuitously issued, the total

amount estimated as expense after issuance may be NT$89,888 thousand

(calculated according to the closing price of NT$ 212 on March 11, 2020). The

amount amortized in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 is estimated to be

NT$11,236 thousand, NT$39,326 thousand, NT$20,225 thousand, NT$12,360

thousand and NT$6,741 thousand respectively.

The dilution of the Company’s EPS and other events impacting the

shareholders’ equity: If calculated based on the closing price of NT$ 212 on

March 11, 2020, the impact on EPS in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 is

about NT$0.26, NT$0.92, NT$0.47, NT$0.29 and NT$0.16 respectively

(calculated according to 42,576 thousand shares issued by the Company on

March 11, 2020), which has no material impacts on the present equity of the

shareholders.

Other important matters:

A. The issuing of new restricted shares for employees shall be conducted by
the custodial trust of the shares; for those who received the distributed
shares shall have the right to participate in the voting and election at the
shareholders’ meeting.

B. The new restricted shares issued for employees can join the dividends.
The trust shall be conducted for the dividends.

C. When implementing the issuance of the proposal, it shall be reported to
the competent authority based on relevant regulations after the resolution
of the Board of Directors under authorization.



2. Matters that are not properly addressed in the proposal shall be amended or
implemented by the authorized Board of Directors or personnel with full powers in
accordance with relevant regulations unless otherwise specified by law.

Resolution:

[Questions and Motions]

[Adjournment]



Attachment 1. The Business Report

Dear shareholders,

Thank you all for the support of Addcn Technology in the previous year and the attendance of the
2020 annual meeting of the shareholders. On behalf of Addcn Technology Co., Ltd., | hereby
welcome you all to give us precious advice.

l. Business results in 2019:

(1) Results of the business plan:
In 2019, the consolidated revenue of the Company was NT$1,468,031 thousand and the
operating profit reached NT$717,142 thousand while the net profit after tax and EPS was
NT$600,852 thousand and NT$14.14, respectively. The continued high stability of the
business operation earns more than one capital stock for the shareholders every year. The
Company also received the recognition of the international institution by winning the
2019 Asia’s Most Trusted Company.”
Under the efforts of the team, the influences of the websites under the Company
continued to increase in various fields in 2019. The “591 Property Trading” already
became the leading enterprise in the industry of second-hand housing rental and new
construction project. The website continued to introduce more services such as the
mortgage service to enhance our leading place. By the strategy of replacing the old by
new ones, the “8891 Cars Trading” became the first priority for vehicle purchasing. In
addition, we strengthened the outsourcing market by introducing the “Tasker Outsourcing”
that integrates technologies such as the big data and machine learning to promote the
efficiency of case matchmaking. Websites including the “100 Interior Design,” “Marry
Wedding Service” and “Chickpt (Part-Time Human Resource)” continued to increase the
leading advantage. Moreover, the “Chickpt” won two rewards of Google Play, which are
the best APP of 2019 and the APP with most potential. Although the market operation
was very difficult due to the impact of the significant changes in the internal and external
situation of Hong Kong, the overall operation of “Hong Kong 591” and “Hong Kong
8591 still grew steadily in such environment. To focus on the development of the
platforms in the long run, the Company terminated the operation of the e-commerce
platform, VIP Brands Outlet, to utilize the resources in a more efficient way.

(2) Revenue and profitability analysis:
For the consolidated revenue, gross profit, operating profit, net profit of continuing
department, net profit after tax in current period and the EPS after tax in 2019, please

refer to the following table:
Unit: NT$ thousands

Year 2019 2018

Item

Operating revenue 1,468,031 1,478,744
Gross profit 1,155,098 1,170,177
Operating profit 717,142 728,260
Net profit _after tax in 600,852 605,804
current period

EPS after tax (NT$) 14.14 14.04

(3) Research and development:
The Company has more than ten million of members, therefore the consumer behavior
data is an important asset for our future websites. By constant enriching of the website
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contents and refining of the data algorithm, the Company increases the benefit generated
from the data resources. Besides, we constantly strive to optimize the mobile terminal.

Summary of 2020 Business Plan:

The global situation seems tougher due to the impact of epidemic. The top priority of the
Company in 2020 is to secure the health of the team members to constantly create interest for
the shareholders after the end of the epidemic. Talents are the most important asset of the
network industry. Only healthy employees can ensure the long-term development of the
Company. For the operation, the Company will expand the cooperation with off-line service
providers to display the “matchmaking” influence of the websites in 2020. “591 Taiwan” and
“8891” will deepen the services to provide a more complete services for the offline vendors
such as the intermediary, business agent and bank. The “518 Human Resource” will pay more
attention on the employment market of the service industry to expand the market participation
of the website. After years of effort, “100 Interior Design,” “Marry Wedding Service” and
“Chickpt” gradually becomes one of the leading enterprises in the industry and we expect these
websites can operate independently. For the overseas market, “Hong Kong 591" reinforces the
operation to expand the market in Zhuhai city of the Greater Bay Area while the “Hong Kong
8591 gradually stabilizes its operation and transforms the leading position to the actual
contribution to the Company. We expect the arrangement and promotion stated above will
significantly benefit the operation of the Company.

Impacts of the external competitive environment, the regulatory environment, and the
macroeconomic business environment

The internationalization of the network market in Taiwan becomes more obvious and the
impact of the overall environment increases every day. However, the progressively opening up
of the overall regulations benefits the network industry. The Company upholds an innovative
attitude to face the increasingly harsh challenges and continues to develop multiple convenient
services to maintain the growing momentum of the Company. The management team of the
Company has rich experience in practice and pays adequate attention to grasp the competitive,
regulatory and the macroeconomic business environments in the market.

Future development strategies

The network technology develops and changes every day. Thus, the Company will constantly
invest in the research and development and improve the data algorithm and provide better user
experience to satisfy the consumer demand via our technology. The market in Taiwan is the
foundation of the Company, therefore we will strengthen the business in Hong Kong by our
experience in Taiwan to expand into overseas markets. We will continue to explore the market
based on the technology to build a growing business model with stability for the Company.

Thank you all for your participation. We also appreciate all of the hardworking employees. In the
future, all employees of the Company will strive to boost the performance to create higher profits
and value for all shareholders and adopt the sustainable operation as the final objective.

We wish each of you good health and all the best.

Chairman: Shih-Fang Liao
General Manager: Tsung-Hsien Wu

Chief Accountant: Chiao-Ni Chang



Attachment 2. Supervisors’ Audit Report

ADDcn Technology Co., Ltd

Supervisors’ inspection Report

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby prepared the 2019 Business Report,
Financial Statements and earnings distribution motions, in which the financial
statements have been audited by board-appointed KPMG with the issuing of the audit

report.

We hereby further declare and confirm that the aforementioned Business Report,
Financial Statements and Proposed earnings distribution have been audited by us. We
found no misstatement in the above, and thereby issue this audit report in accordance

with Article 219 of The Company Act.

To 2020 General Shareholders’ Meeting of ADDcn Technology Co., Ltd

Supervisor: Rui Qi Investment Ltd.
Supervisor: Mu-Chuan Huang
Supervisor: Chin-Han Chen

March 12, 2020
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Attachment 3. Comparison Table of Amendments to the “Procedures
for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct”

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

3. Unethical Conduct:

For the purposes of the Procedures and
Guidelines, unethical conduct means that any
personnel of the Company, in the course of their
duties, directly or indirectly offers, accepts,
promises or request improper benefits or
commits a breach of ethics, illegal acts, or breach
of fiduciary duty for purposes of acquiring or
maintaining benefits.

(Omitted)

3. Prohibition-Agaiast Unethical Conduct:

I hibits I :
performing—unethical-conduet: For the purposes
of the Procedures and Guidelines, ‘“unethical
conduct” means that any personnel of the
Company, in the course of their duties, directly or
indirectly offers, accepts, promises or request
improper benefits or commits a breach of ethics,
illegal acts, or breach of fiduciary duty for
purposes of acquiring or maintaining benefits.
(Omitted)

5. Responsible Unit and Responsibilities:

The Company designates the President’s Office
as the responsible unit (hereinafter referred to as
the responsible unit) subject to the Board of
Directors with sufficient resources and qualified
personnel to be in charge of the amendment,
implementation, interpretation, and advisory
services with respect to the Procedures and
Guidelines as well as the recording and filing of
reports and supervision of the implementation.
The Office is in charge of the following matters
and reports to the Board of Directors on a regular
basis (at least once a year):(Iltem 1 is omitted.)

(2) Reqular analyzing and assessing the risk of
unethical conduct within the business scope to
adopt programs to prevent unethical conduct and
setting out the standard operating procedures and
conduct guidelines with respect to the
Company’s operations and business in each
program.

(Item 3 is omitted.)

(Item 4 is omitted.)

(Item 5 is omitted.)

(Item 6 is omitted.)

(7) Preparing and preserving the documentation
related to the ethical management policy and its
statement of compliance and implementation of

promise.

5. Responsible Unit:

The Company designates the Management
Divisien as the responsible unit (hereinafter
referred to as the responsible unit) subject to the
Board of Directors to be in charge of the
amendment, implementation, interpretation, and
advisory services with respect to the Procedures
and Guidelines as well as the recording and filing
of reports;—the-Audit-Division is responsible for
the supervision of the audit; is in charge of the
following matters and reports to the Board of
Directors on a regular basis:

(Item 1 is omitted.)

(2) Adopting programs to prevent unethical
conduct and setting out the standard operating
procedures and conduct guidelines with respect
to the Company’s operations and business in each
program.

(Item 3 is omitted.)
(Item 4 is omitted.)
(Item 5 is omitted.)
(Item 6 is omitted.)

6. Prohibition Against Providing or Accepting
Improper Benefits:

Except under one of the following circumstances,
when directly or indirectly providing, accepting,
promising or requesting any benefits as specified
in Article 4, the conduct of the given personnel of
the Company shall comply with the provisions of
the “Ethical Corporate Management Best

6. Prohibition Against Providing or Accepting
Improper Benefits:

Except under one of the following circumstances,
when directly or indirectly providing, accepting,
promising or requesting any benefits as specified
in Article 4, the conduct of the given personnel of
the Company shall comply with the provisions of
the “Ethical Corporate Management Best
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After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies” and the Procedures and Guidelines,
and the relevant procedures shall have been
carried out:

(Item 1 is omitted.)

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(Item 3 is omitted.)

(Item 4 is omitted.)

(Item 5 is omitted.)

(6) Money, property or other benefits offered to
or accepted from a person other than relatives or
friends; or gifts of property complying with the
social norms or normal custom given by another
party to the majority of the personnel of the
Company.

(7) Property complying with the social norms or
normal custom received due to engagement,
marriage, maternity, relocation, assumption of a
position, promotion or transfer, retirement,
resignation, or severance, or the injury, illness, or
death of the recipient or the recipient’s spouse or
lineal relative.

(8) Other conduct that complies with the rules of
the Company.

Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies” and the Procedures and Guidelines,
and the relevant procedures shall have been
carried out:

(Item 1 is omitted.)

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(Item 3 is omitted.)

(Item 4 is omitted.)

(Item 5 is omitted.)

£6)Other conduct that complies with the rules of
the Company.

7. Procedures for Handling the Acceptance of
Improper Benefits:

(Paragraph 1 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 2 is omitted.)

The responsible unit of the Company shall make
a proposal, based on the nature and value of the
benefit under Paragraph 1, that it be returned,
accepted on payment, given to the public,
donated to charity, or handled in another
appropriate  manner. The proposal shall be
implemented after being reported to and
approved by the general manager.

7. Procedures for Handling the Acceptance of
Improper Benefits:

(Paragraph 1 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 2 is omitted.)

The responsible unit of the Company shalt make
a proposal, based on the nature and value of the
benefit under Paragraph 1, that it be returned,
accepted on payment, given to the public,

donated to charity, or handled in another
appropriate  manner. The proposal shall be
implemented after being reported to and

approved by the general manager.

8. Prohibition of and Handling Procedure for
Facilitating Payments:

The Company shall neither provide nor promise
any facilitating payment.

If the personnel of the Company provide or
promise a facilitating payment under threat or
intimidation, they shall submit a report with the
process recorded to their immediate supervisor
and notify the responsible unit of the Company.
(Omitted)

8. Prohibition of and Handling Procedure for
Facilitating Payments:

The Company shall neither provide nor promise
any facilitating payment.

If the personnel of the Company provide or
promise a facilitating payment under threat or
intimidation, they shall submit a report with the
process reecerded to their immediate supervisor
and notify the responsible unit of the Company.
(Omitted)

11. Recusal:

11. Recusal:
Fhe—Board—of-Directors—ofthe—Company—shalt
exercise—the-duby-of-careasprodent-managers—o

11




After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

When an underlying matter at a given board of
directors meeting concerns the personal interest
of or the interest of the juristic person
represented by any of the Company’s directors,
supervisors, managers or other stakeholders
attending or present at board meetings, the
concerned person shall state the important
aspects of the relationship of interest at the given
board meeting. If his or her participation is likely
to prejudice the interest of the company, the
concerned person may not participate in
discussion of or voting on the proposal and shall
recuse himself or herself from the discussion or
the voting, and may not exercise voting rights as
proxy for another director. The directors shall
practice self-discipline and must not support one
another in improper dealings.

Where the spouse, a blood relative within the
second degree of kinship of a director or of any
company which has a controlling or subordinate
relation with a director has interests in the
matters under discussion in the meeting of the
preceding paragraph, such director shall be
deemed to have a personal interest in the matter.
(Omitted)

supervise-and prevent cshonestconducts—while
eenst_antly_ reviewing pmllennanlee o _ensuleﬁ
When a prepesal at a given Board of Directors
meeting concerns the personal interest of, or the
interest of the juristic person represented by, any
of the Company’s directors, supervisors,
managers, and other stakeholders attending or
present at board meetings, the concerned person
shall state the important aspects of the
relationship of interest at the given board
meeting. If his or her participation is likely to
prejudice the interest of the company, the
concerned person may not participate in
discussion of or voting on the proposal and shall
recuse himself or herself from the discussion or
the voting, and may not exercise voting rights as
proxy for another director. The directors shall
practice self-discipline and must not support one
another in improper dealings.

(Omitted)

12. Special Unit in Charge of Confidentiality
Regime and its Responsibilities:

The Company shall set up a special unit charged
with formulating and implementing procedures
for managing, preserving, and maintaining the
confidentiality of the Company’s intellectual
properties, such as the trade secrets, trademarks,
patents and copyrights. It shall also conduct
periodical reviews on the results of
implementation to ensure the sustained
effectiveness of the confidentiality procedures.
All personnel of the Company shall faithfully
follow the operational directions pertaining to
intellectual properties as mentioned in the
preceding paragraph and may not disclose to any
other party any trade secrets, trademarks, patents,
works and other intellectual properties of the
Company of which they have learned nor they
may inquire about or collect any trade secrets,
trademarks, patents, works and other intellectual

12. Special Unit in Charge of Confidentiality
Regime and its Responsibilities:

The Company shall set up a special unit for trade
seerets  charged with  formulating and
implementing  procedures  for  managing,
preserving, and maintaining the confidentiality of
the Company’s intellectual properties, such as the
trade secrets, trademarks, patents and copyrights.
It shall also conduct periodical reviews on the
results of implementation to ensure the sustained
effectiveness of the confidentiality procedures.
Seerets:

All personnel of the Company shall faithfully
follow the operational directions pertaining to
intellectual properties as mentioned in the
preceding —article and may not disclose to any
other party any trade secrets, trademarks, patents,
works and other intellectual properties of the
Company of which they have learned nor they
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After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

properties of the Company unrelated to their
individual duties.

may inquire about or collect any trade secrets,
trademarks, patents, works and other intellectual
properties of the Company unrelated to their
individual duties.

13. Prohibition Against Insider Trading and the
Non-disclosure Agreement:

All Company personnel shall adhere to the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act
and may not take advantage of undisclosed
information of which they have learned to engage
in insider trading. Personnel are also prohibited
from divulging undisclosed information to any
other party, in order to prevent other party from
using such information to engage in insider
trading.

Any organization or person outside of the
Company that is involved in any merger,
de-merger, acquisition and share transfer, major
memorandum  of  understanding,  strategic
alliance, other business partnership plan or the
signing of a major contract by the Company shall
be required to sign a non-disclosure agreement in
which they undertake not to disclose to any other
party any trade secrets or other material
information of the Company acquired as a result
and that they may not use such information
without the prior consent of the Company.

14. Prohibition Against Insider Trading:

All Company personnel shall adhere to the
provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act
and may not take advantage of undisclosed
information of which they have learned to engage
in insider trading. Personnel are also prohibited
from divulging undisclosed information to any
other party, in order to prevent other party from
using such information to engage in insider
trading.

15 Nen-disclosure-Agreement: Any organization

or person outside of the Company that is
involved in any merger, demerger, acquisition
and share transfer, major memorandum of
understanding, strategic alliance, other business
partnership plan or the signing of a major
contract by the Company shall be required to
sign a non-disclosure agreement in which they
undertake not to disclose to any other party any
trade secrets or other material information of the
Company acquired as a result and that they may
not use such information without the prior
consent of the Company.

14. Prohibition Against Engaging in Unfair
Competitive Practices:
(Omitted)

16. Prohibition Against Unfair Competitive
Practices:
(Omitted)

15. Preventing Product or Service Damage to
Stakeholders:

(Paragraph 1 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 2 is omitted.)

Where there are media reports or sufficient facts
to determine that the Company’s products or
services are likely to pose any hazard to the
safety and health of consumers or other
stakeholders and it is within the scope of
responsibility borne by the Company specified in
the “Service terms,” “Disclaimer” and “Privacy
Statement” of the Company website, the
Company shall recall those products or suspend
the services within 14 workdays, verify the facts
and present a review and improvement plan.
(Paragraph 4 is omitted.)

17. Preventing Product or Service Damage to
Stakeholders:

(Paragraph 1 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 2 is omitted.)

Where there are media reports or sufficient facts
to determine, that the Company’s products or
services are likely to pose any hazard to the
safety and health of consumers or other
stakeholders, the Company shall recall those
products or suspend the services immediately,
verify the facts and present a review and
improvement plan.

(Paragraph 4 is omitted.)

16. Compliance and Announcement of Policy of
Ethical Management:

18- Announcement of Policy of Ethical
Management-te-Outside-Parties:
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After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

The Company shall require the directors and the
senior management to issue a statement of
compliance for the ethical management policy
and require the employees to comply with the
ethical management policy in the employment
terms and conditions.

The Company shall disclose the established
ethical management policy in the internal rules,
annual reports, on the company’s websites, and in
other promotional materials, and shall make
timely announcements of the policy in events
held for outside parties such as product launches
and investor press conferences, in order to make
the  suppliers, customers and other
business-related institutions and personnel fully
aware of the principles and rules of the Company
with respect to ethical management.

The Company shall disclose the policy of ethical
management in the internal rules, annual reports,
on the company’s websites and in other
promotional materials, and shall make timely
announcements of the policy in events held for
outside parties such as investor press
conferences, in order to make the parthers and
other business-related institutions and personnel
fully aware of the principles and rules of the
Company with respect to ethical management.

17. Ethical Management Evaluation Prior to
Development of Commercial Relationships:
Before establishing a business relationship with
another party, the Company shall first evaluate
the legitimacy and ethical management policy of
the distributors, suppliers, customers or other
business counterparties and whether the party has
a record of involvement in unethical conduct to
ensure its business conduct is in a fair and
transparent manner without any requesting,
offering, or taking bribes.

(Omitted)

19. Ethical Management Evaluation Prior to
Development of Commercial Relationships:
Before establishing a business relationship with
another party, the Company shall first evaluate
the legitimacy and ethical management policy
and whether the party has a record of
involvement in unethical conduct to ensure that
the eounterparty conducts business in a fair and
transparent manner without requesting, offering,
or taking bribes.

(Omitted)

18. Statement of Ethical Management Policy to
Counterparties in Commercial Dealings:
(Omitted)

20. Statement of Ethical Management Policy to
Counterparties in Commercial Dealings:
(Omitted)

19. Avoidance of Commercial Dealings with
Unethical Operators:

All personnel of the Company shall avoid
business transactions with an distributor,
supplier, customer, or other counterparties in
commercial interactions that is involved in
unethical conduct. When the counterparty or
partner in cooperation is found to engage in
unethical  conduct, the personnel shall
immediately cease dealing with the counterparty
and blacklist it for any further business
interaction to implement the ethical management
policy of the Company.

2%. Avoidance of Commercial Dealings with
Unethical Operators:

All personnel of the Company shall avoid
business transactions with an distributor,
supplier, customer, or other counterparties in
commercial interactions that is involved in
unethical conduct. When the counterparty or
partner in cooperation is found to engage in
unethical  conduct, the personnel shall
immediately cease dealing with the counterparty
and blacklist it for any further business
interaction to implement the ethical management

policy-efthe-Coempany.

20. Stipulation of Terms of Ethical Management
in Contracts:
(Omitted)

22. Stipulation of Terms of Ethical Management
in Contracts:
(Omitted)

21. Handling of Unethical Conduct by Personnel

23. Handling of Unethical Conduct by Personnel
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After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

of the Company:

(Paragraph 1 is omitted.)

The Company shall internally establish and
publicly announce an independent internal
mailbox and hotline for whistle-blowing on the
website and the intranet or commission an
independent external institution to provide a
whistle-blowing mailbox and hotline for the
insiders and outsiders of the Company. A
whistleblower shall at least furnish the following
information:

(1) The whistleblower’s name and [.D. number or
anonymous. Also provide the address, telephone
number and e-mail address where the
whistleblower can be reached.

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(Item 3 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 3 is omitted.)

The responsible unit of the Company shall
observe the following procedure to handle the
whistleblowing case:

(Item 1 is omitted.)

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(3) If a person being informed of is confirmed to
have indeed violated the applicable laws and
regulations or the Company’s policy and
regulations of ethical management, the Company
shall immediately require the violator to cease
the conduct and shall make an appropriate
disposition. When necessary, the Company will
report to the competent authority and judiciary
for investigation or institute legal proceedings
and seek damages to safeguard its reputation and
its rights and interests.

(Item 4 is omitted.)

(Item 5 is omitted.)

(Item 6 is omitted.)

of the Company:

(Paragraph 1 is omitted.)

The Company shall internally establish and
publicly announce an independent internal
mailbox and hotline for whistle-blowing on the
website and the intranet or commission an
independent external institution to provide a
whistle-blowing mailbox and hotline for the
insiders and outsiders of the Company. A
whistleblower shall at least furnish the following
information:

(1) The whistleblower’s name and I.D. number,
and an address, telephone number and e-mail
address where it can be reached.

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(Item 3 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 3 is omitted.)

Alse; the responsible unit of the Company shall
observe the following procedures for handling:

(Item 1 is omitted.)

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(3) If a person being informed about is confirmed
to have indeed violated the applicable laws and
regulations or the Company’s policy and
regulations of ethical management, the Company
shall immediately require the violator to cease
the conduct and shall make an appropriate
disposition. When necessary, the Company will
institute legal proceedings and seek damages to
safeguard its reputation and its rights and
interests.

(Item 4 is omitted.)
(Item 5 is omitted.)
(Item 6 is omitted.)

22. Actions on Events of Unethical Conduct by
Others towards the Company:
(Omitted)

24. Actions on Events of Unethical Conduct by
Others towards the Company:
(Omitted)

23. Internal Promotion, Establishment of a
System for Rewards, Penalties and Complaints
and Disciplinary Measures:

(Omitted)

25. Establishment of a System for Rewards,
Penalties and Complaints and Disciplinary
Measures:

(Omitted)
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Attachment 4. Comparison Table of Amendments to the “Ethical
Corporate Management Best Practice Principles”

Chapter

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

4. Compliance:

The Company shall comply with the
Company  Act, Securities and
Exchange Act, Business Entity
Accounting Act, Political Donations
Act, Anti-Corruption Act, Government
Procurement Act, Act on Recusal of
Public Servants Due to Conflicts of
Interest, TWSE/GTSM Listing rules or
other laws or regulations regarding
commercial  activities, as  the
underlying basic premise to facilitate
ethical corporate management.

The Company shall comply with
thelaws—and—reglations—ofits—country
ofregistration-the ROC Company Act,
Securities and Exchange Act, Business
Entity Accounting Act, Political
Donations Act, Anti-Corruption Act,
Government Procurement Act, Act on
Recusal of Public Servants Due to
Conflicts of Interest, TWSE/GTSM
Listing rules, or other laws or
regulations  regarding commercial
activities, as the underlying basic
premise to facilitate ethical corporate
management.

5. Policies:

The Company shall abide by the
operational philosophies of honesty,
transparency and responsibility, base
policies approved by the Board of
Directors on the principle of good faith
and  establish good  corporate
governance and risk control and
management mechanism so as to
create an operational environment for
sustainable development.

The Company shall abide by the
operational philosophies of honesty,
transparency and responsibility, base
policies on the principle of good faith
and  establish  good  corporate
governance and risk control and
management mechanism so as to
create an operational environment for
sustainable development.

6. Preventions:

The Company shall in their own
ethical management policy clearly and
thoroughly  prescribe the specific
ethical management practices and the
programs to forestall unethical conduct
(hereinafter referred to as “prevention
solutions™), including operating
procedures, guidelines and training.
The Company’s prevention solutions
shall comply with the laws of the
locations in which the Company and
the group members operate.

In the course of developing the
prevention solutions, the Company
shall communicate with the employee,

The Company shall in their own
ethical management policy clearly and
thoroughly  prescribe the specific
ethical management practices and the
programs to forestall unethical conduct
(hereinafter referred to as “prevention
solutions™), including operating
procedures, guidelines and training.
The Company’s prevention solutions
shall comply with the laws of the
locations in which the Company and
their group members operate.

In the course of developing the
prevention solutions, the Company
shall communicate with the employee,

labor unions members, important | labor unions members, important
trading  counterparties, or other | trading counterparties, or other
stakeholders. stakeholders.
7. Scope of For the risk of unethical conduct, the | When-develeping-preventive-selutions;
Preventive Company  shall establish  the | the Company shall analyze the
Solutions: assessment mechanism and regularly i }

analyze and assess the business
activities within their business scope

business activities withintheirbusiness
hict il hial

risk-of being involved in an unethical
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Chapter

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

which are possibly at a higher risk of
being involved in an unethical conduct
to establish preventive solutions and
review the adequacy and effectiveness
of the solutions on a regular basis.

The prevention solutions established
by the Company shall refer to
standards or guidelines generally used
in_Taiwan and abroad and at least

conduct, and strengthen—relevant
preventive-measures:

The prevention solutions established
by the Company shall at least include
the following preventive measures:

include the following preventive

measures:

(1) Omitted. (1) Omitted.

(2) Omitted. (2) Omitted.

(3) Omitted. (3) Omitted.

(4) Omitted. (4) Omitted.

(5) Omitted. (5) Omitted.

(6) Omitted. (6) Omitted.

(7) Omitted. (7) Omitted.
8 The Company shall require the

Commitments
and Execution:

directors and the senior management to
issue a statement of compliance for the
ethical management policy and require
the employees to comply with the
ethical management policy in the
employment terms and conditions.

The Company and group members
shall state explicitly in the rules,
external documents and the Company
website their commitments to business
integrity, as well as Board of Directors’
and the senior  management’s
commitment to enforcing integrity
policies. These commitments need to
be reflected accordingly in internal
management practices and external
commercial activities.

The Company shall prepare and
preserve the documentation of the
ethical management policy specified in
Paragraph 1 and 2 and its statement,
promise and implementation.

The Company and its group members
shall state explicitly in the rules and
external documents their commitments
to business integrity, as well as board
of directors’ and the management’s
commitment to enforcing integrity
policies. These commitments need to
be reflected accordingly in internal
management practices and external
commercial activities.

9. Integrity in
Commercial
Activities:

The Company shall engage in
commercial activities in a fair and
transparent manner based on the
principle of ethical management.

Prior to engaging in commercial
transactions, the Company is required
to evaluate the legitimacy of the

The Company shall
commercial activities in a fair and
transparent manner based on the
principle of ethical management.

Prior to engaging in commercial
transactions, the Company is required
to evaluate the legitimacy of i#s

engage in
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Chapter

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

distributors, suppliers, customers and
any counterparties, and investigate
whether or not any of them are
involved in unethical conduct to avoid
any dealings with persons so involved.
Contracts signed by the Company with
distributors, suppliers, customers or
other counterparties shall include
clauses that requires compliance with
ethical corporate management policy
and gives the Company the right to
terminate or rescind the contract if the
counterparty is involved in unethical
conduct.

distributors, suppliers, customers and
any counterparties, and investigate
whether any of them are involved in
unethical conduct to avoid any
dealings with persons so involved.
Contracts signed by the Company with
s distributors, suppliers, customers or
other counterparties shal include
clauses that requires compliance with
ethical corporate management policy
and gives the Company the right to
terminate or rescind the contract if the
counterparty is involved in unethical
conduct.

10. Prohibition
Against
Offering and
Acceptance of
Bribery:

When carrying out business activities,

the Company and the directors,
supervisors, managers, employees,
mandataries, and substantial

controllers of the Company may not
offer, guarantee, request or accept any
form of illegitimate benefits with
customers, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, government officials or
other stakeholders, whether directly or
indirectly.

When carrying out business activities,

the Company and #s directors,
supervisors, managers, employees,
mandataries, and substantial

controllers may not offer, guarantee,
request or accept any form of
illegitimate benefits with customers,
distributors,  contractors,  suppliers,
government  officials or  other
stakeholders, whether directly or
indirectly.

11. Prohibition
Against lllegal
Political
Donations:

Any donations
indirectly  to

made directly or
political ~ parties,
campaigns or individuals by the
Company  and the directors,
supervisors, managers, employees,
mandataries, and substantial
controllers of the Company must
comply with the Political Donations
Act and the Company’s internal
procedures. These donations cannot be
exploited as means of obtaining
commercial benefits or advantages.

Any donations made directly or
indirectly  to  political  parties,
campaigns or individuals by the
Company andits directors, supervisors,
managers, employees, mandataries,
and substantial controllers  must
comply with the Political Donations
Act and the Company’s internal
procedures. These donations cannot be
exploited as means of obtaining

commercial benefits or advantages.

17.
Organization
and
Responsibilities

The directors, supervisors, managers,
employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers of the Company
shall exercise the duty of care as
prudent managers to supervise and
prevent unethical conduct, while
constantly review the implementation
performance and ongoing
improvement to ensure the sound
execution of ethical management

policy.

The directors, supervisors, managers,
employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers of the Company
shall exercise the duty of care as
prudent managers to supervise and
prevent unethical conduct, while
constantly review the implementation
performance and ongoing
improvement to ensure the sound
execution of ethical management

policy.
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Chapter

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

To achieve sound ethical management,
the Company shall establish a
dedicated unit (President’s Office)
subject to the Board of Directors with
sufficient resources and qualified
personnel to be responsible for the
establishment and implementation
supervision of the ethical management
policy and prevention solutions. The
Division is in charge of the following
matters and report to the Board of
Directors on a regular basis (at least
once a year):

(1) Omitted.

(2) Regqular analyzing and assessing
the risk of unethical conduct within the
business scope to adopt programs to
prevent unethical conduct and setting
out the standard operating procedures
and conduct guidelines with respect to
the  Company’s operations and
business in each program.

(3) Omitted.

(4) Omitted.

(5) Omitted.

(6) Omitted.

To achieve sound ethical management,
the Company shall establish the
Management—Divisien subject to the
Board of Directors to be responsible
for the establishment and
implementation supervision of the
ethical management policy and
prevention solutions. The Division is
in charge of the following matters, and
report to the Board of Directors on a
regular basis:

(1) Omitted.

(2) Adopting programs to prevent
unethical conduct and setting out the
standard operating procedures and
conduct guidelines with respect to the
Company’s operations and business in
each program.

(3) Omitted.
(4) Omitted.
(5) Omitted.
(6) Omitted.

20. Accounting
and Internal
Control:

The Company shall establish effective
accounting system and internal control
system for business activities with
higher risk of being involved in an
unethical conduct, not have
under-the-table accounts or keep secret
accounts, and conduct reviews
regularly so as to ensure that the
design and enforcement of the systems
are showing results.

The internal audit unit of the Company
shall draft relevant audit plan including
the subject, scope, items and frequency
of the audit based on the risk
assessment result of the unethical
conduct to review the compliance of
the preventive solutions. The CPA
shall be appointed to carry out the
audit, and may engage professionals to
assist if necessary.

The preceding audit result shall be
reported to the senior management and
the responsible unit of ethical

The Company shall establish effective
accounting system and internal control
system for business activities with
higher risk of being involved in an
unethical conduct, not have
under-the-table accounts or keep secret
accounts, and conduct reviews
regularly so as to ensure that the
design and enforcement of the systems
are showing results.

The internal audit unit of the Company

shall  periodically — examine  the
F;E""GE.“'& S SE“"G“EHTE with Hl'.e
reports to submit to the Board of
Directors: The CPA shall be appointed
to carry out the audit, and may engage
professionals to assist if necessary.
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Chapter

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

management and submit to the Board
of Director in the form of an audit

report.

22.
Whistle-blowing
System:

The Company shall adopt a concrete
whistle-blowing system and
scrupulously operate the system. The
whistle-blowing system shall include
at least the following:

(1) Omitted.

(2) The Company shall assign
dedicated personnel or unit to handle
whistle-blowing. Any whistle-blowing
involving a director or senior
management shall be escalated to the
independent directors or supervisors.
The Company shall also establish
categories of the whistle-blowing and
standard operating procedures for the
investigation.

(3) After the completion of the
established whistle-blowing
investigation procedure, the Company
will take the following actions
depending on the severity and report to

the component authority or the
judiciary when necessary.
(4) Omitted.

(5) Confidentiality of the identity of
whistle-blowers and the content of

reported cases. Also, anonymous
whistle-blowing is permitted.

(6) Omitted.

(7) Omitted.

When  material  misconduct  or
likelihood of material impairment to
the Company’s awareness upon

investigation, the dedicated personnel
or unit handling the whistle-blowing
shall immediately prepare a report and
notify the independent directors or
supervisors in written form.

The Company shall adopt a concrete
whistle-blowing system and
scrupulously operate the system. The
whistle-blowing system shall include
at least the following:

(1) Omitted.

(2) The Company shall assign
dedicated personnel or unit to handle
whistle-blowing. Any whistle-blowing
involving a director or senior
superviser shall be escalated to the
independent directors or supervisors.
The Company shall also establish
categories of the whistle-blowing and
standard operating procedures for the
investigation.

(3) Omitted.

{4) Confidentiality of the identity of
whistle-blowers and the content of
reported cases.

(5) Omitted.
(6) Omitted.
When  material  misconduct  or
likelihood of material impairment to
the Company’s awareness upon

investigation, the dedicated personnel
or unit handling the whistle-blowing
shall immediately prepare a report and
notify the independent directors or
supervisors in written form.

24. Information
Disclosure:

The Company shall collect quantitative
data about the promotion of ethical
management, continuously analyze
and assess the effectiveness of the
promotion of ethical management
policy and disclose the measures of the

The Company shall collect quantitative
data about the promotion of ethical
management, continuously analyze and
assess the effectiveness of the
promotion of ethical management
policy and disclose itsmeasures for
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After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

Company for implementing ethical
corporate management, the status of
implementation, the foregoing
quantitative data and the effectiveness
of promotion on the Company website,
annual report and prospectus. The
Company also shall disclose the
Principles on the Market Observation
Post System.

implementing ethical corporate
management, the status of
implementation, the foregoing

quantitative data and the effectiveness
of promotion on the Company website,
annual report and prospectus. The
Company also shall disclose the
Ethical Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles on the Market
Observation Post System.

26. Additional
Rules:

The principles shall be implemented
upon approval from the Board of
Directors, and are submitted to the
supervisors and the shareholders’
meeting. The same apply to subsequent
amendments.

When submitting the Principles for
discussion by the Board of Directors
pursuant to the preceding paragraph,
the Company shall fully consider the
opinions of the independent directors.
All objections and reserved opinions
expressed by independent directors
must be detailed in the board meeting
minutes. If the independent director is
unable to express objections or
reservations in person during the
Board of Directors meeting, they shall
issue a written opinion in advance,
which shall be recorded in the meeting
minutes, unless there is some
legitimate reason to do otherwise.

Matters that are not specified in the
Rules shall be handled in accordance
with relevant laws and requlations.

The principles shall be implemented
upon approval from the Board of
Directors, and are submitted to the
supervisors and the shareholders’
meeting. The same apply to subsequent
amendments.

Rules shall be handled in-accordance
The —Company —has—established—the
tndependent — directors. When
submitting the Ethical—Ceorporate
Management—Best—Practice Principles
for discussion by the Board of
Directors pursuant to the preceding
paragraph, the Company shall fully
consider the opinions of the
independent directors. All objections
and reserved opinions expressed by
independent directors must be detailed
in the board meeting minutes. If the
independent director is unable to
express objections or reservations in
person during the Board of Directors
meeting, they shall issue a written
opinion in advance, which shall be
recorded in the meeting minutes,
unless there is some legitimate reason
to do otherwise.
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Attachment 5. CPA Audit and 2019 Financial Statement of the
Company

Independent Auditors” Report

To the Board of Directors of Adden Technology Co., Lid.:
Opinion

We have aundited the consolidated financial statements of Adden Technology Co.. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“the
Group™ ), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, changes in equify and cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly. in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the vears then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Goverming the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securifies Issuers and with the Infernational Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™), International Accounting Standards (“IASs™), Interpretations developed by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFEIC™) or the former Standing Interpretations
Commuittee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Cerfification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors” Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (© the
Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Eey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Revenue recognition
Please refer to note 4(o) for the accounting policy of “Revenue™ and note 6(u) for composition of revenue.
Description of key audit matter:

Sales Revenue of the Group is mainly generated from operating online platforms. The wayv of revenue
recognifion varies by different types of transactions and its economic substances. Also, there is a large
quanfity of transactions through the online platforms day-by-day with system-controlled trading information
and procedures.

Therefore, transaction information and the timing of revenue recognition is an important 1ssue in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal aundit procedures included: understanding trading models of each online platform and its
principal svstem-based application confrol and manual control, mcluding involving IRM specialist in testing
the general information technology environment and related application control of their main transaction
processes; obtaining the monthly income statement generated by the system of online platforms, assessing
whether the system processes transaction information appropriately, and inspecting some samples of
accounting vouchers to see if they agree with the monthly income statement generated by the system.

Other Matter

Adden Technology Co., Ltd. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the
IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, 5IC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal confrol as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand
O e1ror.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group™s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the supervisors) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
Teporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

[

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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3. Ewaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditors” report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our opmnion Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors™ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlving transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entfities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We commmnicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors™ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors™ report are Cheng-Chien Chen and
Yung-Hua Huang.

EPMG

Taipei. Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 12, 2020
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued
Adden Technology Co. Ltd. AND SUBSIDIARTES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehenszive Income

For the year: ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

in Chinese)

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Operzting reverme (note 6(u) and 7}
Operating costs (note 6(e))
Gross profit from operations
Operating expenses (note 6{d)(p)(v) and T):
Admmestrative expenses
Fesearch and development expences
Impainment loss deteromned n accordance with IFRS 9
Total operating expenses
Net operating income
Non-operating income and axpenses:
Crther ncome (note S(w) and T)
Crther gams and losses, net (note Sh)(w))
Finance costs (note S(w})
Share of profit of associates accounted for nsing equty method (note G{£))
Total non-operating income and expenses
Profit before income tax
Less: income tax expenzes (mote 6{q))
Profit
Oiher comprehensive income:
Iteins that will not be reclazsified subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealized losses from mvestments m equity mmstnoments measured at far value through
other comprehensive meome
Income tax related to conmponents of other comprehensive meome that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Tteins that will be reclazzified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation
Unrealized gains (losses) from mvestoents m debt mmshunsents measured at far value
through other comprehensive meome
Income tax related to components of other comprehen=ive mmcome that will be reclzssifisd
to profit or koss

Oiher comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:
Cramers of parent
Men-controlling mterests

Comprehensive income attributable to:
Cromers of parent

Men-controlling mterests

Bazic earnings per share (NT dollars) (note 6{t))
Dhluted earning: per share (NT dollars) (note 6{f))
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Amount . % _Ameunt %
§ 1488031 100 1473744 100
312933 31 308,567 _21
1155008 79 1170177 _ 79
176924 12 176472 12
02597 14 199382 13
45,634 3 54 862 4
12781 _ 1 1181 1
—diias6 20 _ 10T 30
T717.142 49 728260 49
20,221 1 25411 2
1,098 (138 -
e - - -
17382 __ 1 118 _ -
g4 2 15393 2
75555 51 753,653 5l
19702 11 147845 10
GO0.852 40 605804 41
T3 - (66,7287 (5)

T3 - (66,7207 (5
2300 (1) (12,156 (1)

v - 299 -
(23.055) _ (1) (15075 _ (1
23,798y _ (1) (LA _ (6)

5 STLOS4 i‘ﬂ £34.000 j
§ 60L1%9 40 595540 40
30T _ - 10284 1
S8 40 60550 _dl
§ 5TTe60 30 514395 33
606y _ - 8605 _ -

5 STLOS4 i‘ﬂ £34.000 j
S 1404 1404
§ 14,04 13.93
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{(English Translation of Consolidated Fimancial Statements Originally Isswed in Chinese)

Adden Technology Co., Ltd. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Conzolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

19 1018
Cash flows from operating activifies:
Profit before tax 5 755,554 17,141
Adjustments:
Adjostments fo reconcile profit:
Depreciation expense 37,203 28,523
Amortization expense 2726 0458
Expected credit loss 12,781 11,191
Wet gain oo finapcial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss (189)
Infersst expense 28O
Intersst income (4.819) (6117
Dividend mopme (1,478} (4000
Share-bazed payments 3,194 19,308
Share of profit of associates accounted for using equiry method {17.382) (118)
Loss on disposal of property, plan and equipment 205 41
Properiy, plan and equipment oansfemed o expenses - 5
(ain on dispesal of invesiments {345) (2400
(Gain on dispesal of invesments accounted for using equity methed - (1,681
Unrealized forsizn exchange loss (gain) 1,124 (35)
(rain on price recovery of imventory - (5700
Total adjustments fo reconcile profit 40,085 54,215
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Changes in operating assets:
Wotes and trade receivable 19,807 (16,008
Trade rzceivable dos from related partias (43,0945) 20,7810
Iwentories 9,714 10478
Cribier cunment assets 2,606 3360
Criber financial assets 7.105 0650
Total changes in operating assets (2 652 (11 282)
Changes in operating liabilifies:
Nofes payable and trade payable (3.508) (2,137
Trade payable o related parties - 17,787
Crther payahle (4.503) (31.776)
Crther payable to related parties (6.647) 6,963
Confract liabilities 12237 13,603
Criher current liabilities (2,641 (G44)
Becsipts under custody {153] 37,976
Total changes in operating liabilities (5.25T) 13,771
Total changes in operating assets and Babilities (1.o]e A
Total adjostments 321466 36,704
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(English Translation of Consolidated Fimancial Statements Originally Issued in Chimese)
Adden Technology Co., Lid. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Conzelidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Tatwan Dollars)

19 018
Cazh inflow generated from operations TEI.T20 73,845
Inmterest recenved 4,688 4,153
Interest paid (289 -
Income tames paid (149 373} (1405547
Net cash flows from eperating actvities 642,836 839433
Cash flows (osed im) from investing actvifies:
Acquisition of fimancial assets at fair vahue threuzh other comprebensive (68.497) (57,073)
incoms
Proceseds from disposal of financial assets at fair valoe through other 56,177 10,288
comprehenzive inoome
Proceeds Tom capital reduction of financial assets at far value through other 17.658
comprebensive Inoome
Agquisition of financial assets at fair value thoough profit or loss - 22,3400
Proceeds fTom dizposal of fnancial asssts at fair valoe through profit or loss 23,004 -
Proceeds fTom disposal of subsidiaries - (15,955)
Arquisition of property. plant and equipment (B5,074) (17,683
Proceeds Tom disposal of property, plant and eguipment B2 -
(Increase) decrease io r=fundable depesits {200} 177
Arouisitien of intangible asssts (662) (1,042
Acquisition of investment properties (2,359 (56,4637
(Increasze) decrease io other fnancial assefs (28.033) 226,230
Increazs m other non-omrent assets (21.550)
Dividends received 8.697 400
Net cash flows (msed in) from investing activities (114.5461) 13648
Cash flows nsed in financing actvities:
Increass n goarantes deposits received 4,551 4,200
Payment of l=az= liabilitias (4,151} -
Cash dividends paid (332.237) (550,008
Change in non-controlling inferssts - (1741}
Net cash flows used in financing acivities [331.837) (5585400
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (5.511) (12531
Net merease {decrease) im cash and cash equivalents (10,054 ) 51,802
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 630,155 518363
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 670,101 680,165
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Independent Auditors® Report

To the Board of Directors of Adden Technology Co., Litd -
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Adden Technology Co., Lid. (“the Company™), which comprise the
balance sheet as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the vears then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors™ Responsibilities for the
Andit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (“the Code™). and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Keyv Audit Matters

Eey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

1. Revenue recognition
Please refer to note 4(o) for the accounting policy of revenue and note 6{u) for composition of revenue.
Description of key audit matter:

Sales Revenue of the Company is mainly generated from operating online platforms. The way of revenue
recognition varies by different tvpes of transactions and its economic substances. Also, there is a large
quantity of transactions through the online platforms dav-by-day with system-controlled trading information
and procedures.

Therefore, transaction information and the timing of revenue recognifion is an important issue in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements.
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How the matter was addressed with our andit:

COur principal audit procedures included: understanding frading models of each online platform and its
principal system-based application control and mamial control, including involving IRM specialist in testing
the general information technology environment and related application control of their main transaction
processes; obtaining the monthly income statement generated by the system of online platforms. assessing
whether the system processes transaction informafion appropriately, and inspecting some samples of
accounting vouchers to see if they agree with the monthly income statement generated by the system.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Regulations Goveming the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securnities Issuers and for such internal
confrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material nusstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’ s ability to
confinie as a going concem, disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and wsing the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either infends to liquidate the Company or fo cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but fo do so.

Those charged with governance (including supervisors) are responsible for overseeing the Company”s financial
Teporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, buf is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frand or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the nisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
musstatement resulting from fraud 15 higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of infemal conirol relevant to the aundif in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's infernal control.

3. Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the aundit evidence obtained, whether a material vncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to contimie as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material
uncerfainty exists, we are required to draw attenfion mn our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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3. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial stafements represent the underlyving transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in other
entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on this financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We commmmicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

fiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal confrol that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and fo commumicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those mafters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our anditors”™ report unless law o regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected fo
outwelgh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors” report are Cheng-Chien Chen and
Yung-Hua Huang,

EPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 12, 2020

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financizl position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of
any other junsdichions. The standards, procedures and prachces to audit such parent company only financial staternents are those
generally accepted and apphied in the Fepublic of China.

The mmdependent auditors” audit report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Bepublic of China. If there 15 any conflict between, or any difference mn the mterpretation of the
Englizh and Chimese lanpuape independent audrtors’ aundit report and parent company only financial statement=, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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(Englizh Translation of Parent Company Ouly Finaneial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

Adden Technology Co., Ltd.
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , except for earnings per share)

Operating revenues (note 6(u) and 7)
Operating costs (note 6(d) and 7)
Groszs profit from operations
Operating expenszes (note S{c) kM o)(pi=)(+) and T):
Selling expenses
Admimstratrve expenses
EResearch and development expenses
Impairment loss determined m accordance with IFRS 9
Total operating expenzes
Net operating income
Non-operating income and expenses:
Other income(note S(w) and 7)
Orther gains and losses, net (note 6(w) and )
Finance costs, net (note 6(w))
Share of profit of associates accounted for wsing equity methed (note 6(g))
Total non-operating incowme and expenses
Profit from continuing operations before tax
Less: Income tax expenczes (mote 6(g))
Profit from discontinued operation :
Profit
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Unrealized losses from investments in equity mstroments measured at fair value through other comprehensrve income
Share of other comprehensive mncome of subsidianes, asseciates and jomnt ventures accounted for using equuty method,

components of other comprehensire meome that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive meome that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchanpe differences on tranclation of foreign finaneial statements
Unreahized gains (losses) from investments in debt mstruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive meome that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Components of other comprehensive income that will be reclazsified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Basic earning:s per share (NT dollars) (note 6{t))
Diluted earnings per share (NT dellars) (noete 6{t))
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1019 2018
Awount % Amount %
§ 1413137 100 1417973 100
365451 26 347 557 25
1,047,684 74 1070416 75
159,705 12 209,453 15
130,573 9 121,645 g
45,635 3 54,862 4
12781 1 11.191 1
348.714 25 387.151 25
698.970 49 673,265 48
19270 2 30,921 2
1,616 - 1,550 -
(2600 - - -
311,326 2 27.851 2
51,952 4 60,322 4
750,922 33 733,587 50
149,763 10 138.047 10
601,159 43 595,540 40
(29909 () (69,159 (%)
29166 2 2430 -
J43 - 66723 __(5)
(22795 () 11497y (1)
39 - (2919 -
(22.756) __ (2 (14416) __ (1)
(23495 _ (2 (81.145) (6}
3 £77.660 41 514,395 34
13 14.14 14.04
3 14.04 13.93
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{Englizh Tranzlation of Parent Company Ouly Financial Statement: Originally Izsued in Chinese)

Addcn Technology Co., Ltd.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

1019 1018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax i 750,922 733,587
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 21,523 14288
Amortizafion expense 2317 2171
Expected cradit loss 12,781 11,191
Interest expense 260 -
Interest meome (3,6635) {4.694)
Dividend income (1,478) (400
Share-bazed payments transcatons 31594 16815
Share of profit of subsidianes, associates and joint venfures accounted (31.326) (27.851)
for using equuity method
Loss on disposal of property, plan and equipment - (23)
(rain on disposal of investments (5435) (2407
(rain on disposal of investments accounted for using equity method - {1,681}
Unreahzed foreign exchange loss (gain} 1,199 (56)
Fam from price recovery of inventory - {3 700
Total adjustments to reconcile profit 11.260 10820
Changes in operating asset: and Habilites:
Changes in operating assets:
Motes and accounts receivable 20364 (697)
Trade recervable due from related parties (44,0400 -
Inventones 9,716 10,479
Prepayments 6,694 (5,679)
Other current assets {933) 19,844
Other financial assets {424 1322
Total changes in operating assets (8.623) 25269
Changes in operating habilities:
Motes and accounts payable (3,697 (2,139
Accounts payable to related parties 7,749 96
(Other pavable 2,054 201
(Oither pavable to related parties (6,561) 6962
Contract liabilities 12,217 6936
Oiher cmrent habilities (2,6586) (66)
Feceipts under custody (2.313) 17.702
Total changes in operating liabilities 6793 28 692
Total changes in operating assets and labilities (1.832) 34961
Total adjustments 3428 63,781
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{Enzhizh Trapslation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Izsued i Chinese)

Adden Technology Co., Led.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
{Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash mflow generated from operations
Interest recerved
Interest pard
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from operating activites
Cash flows (used in) from investing activities:
Acqmziton of finaneial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
Income
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensrve mcome
Acquizition of investments accounted for using equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equpment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Decreasze in refundable deposits
Acquizition of intangible assets
Acquizsiton of investment properties
{Increase) decrease m other financial assets
Dividends recerved
Net caszh flows (used in) from investing activities
Cazh flows uzed in financing activities:
Increase m guarantee deposits recerved
Payvment of lease habilifies
Cash dividends paid
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cazh and cash equivalents
Cazh and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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2019 2018
760,350 799 368
3,667 4728
(260) -
{144.592) (131.218)
£19.163 672,878
(68,497) -
56,177 10,288
- (69,012)
(91,637) (12,938)
- 28
68 349
(198) (939)
(4,359) (66.463)
(11,930) 226,219
8.697 £.265
{111.679) 93 801
4,550 4200
(2,766) -
(532.237) (659.998)
(530.453) (655.798)
(22.967) 110,881
481,736 3170.855
458,769 481,736




Attachment 6. 2019 Surplus Earning Distribution Table

ADDcn Technology Co., Ltd.
2019 Surplus Earning Distribution Table
Unit: NT$ dollars

Item Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings at beginning of $2.359.319
the term
Add: Net profit after tax in 2019 $601,156,740
Less: Appropriated as legal reserve (10%) ($60,115,674)
Less: Special reserves ($23,498,273)
Total current distributable net profit $519,902,112
Distributable items

Dividends -- Cash (NT$ 12.2 per share) ($519,421,100)
Unz_approprlated retained earnings at the end of the $481 012
period

Chairman: Managerial officer: Chief Accountant:
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Attachment 7. Comparison Table of Amendment to the “Articles of

Incorporation”

Chapter | After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

Chapter Il Shares of Stock

Article 7. | The Company shall assign its share
certificates with serial numbers. The
stocks shall be registered and the share
certificates shall be affixed with the
signatures or personal seals of the
director representing the Company and
shall be duly certified or authenticated in
accordance with the laws before issuance
thereof. After publicly issuing the shares,
the Company may be exempted from
printing any share certificate for the
shares issued but shall register the issued
shares with a centralized securities
depositary enterprise.

The Company shall assign its share
certificates with serial numbers. The
stocks shall be registered and the share
certificates shall be affixed with the
signatures or personal seals of mere-than
three—(3)—directors and shall be duly
certified or authenticated in accordance
with the laws before issuance thereof.
After publicly issuing the shares, the
Company may be exempted from
printing any share certificate for the
shares issued but shall register the issued
shares with a centralized securities
depositary enterprise.

Chapter 1V Directors and Supervisors

Article 14: | The Company shall establish 5 to 7 seats
of directors and 1 to 3 seats of
supervisors. The candidates nomination
system is adopted according to the
Company Act. The shareholders shall
elect the directors from among the
nominees_listed in the roster of director
candidates. Directors and supervisors
shall have tenure of 3 years and may be
assume a second term of office if
reelected.

The Company shall establish 5 to 7 seats
of directors and 1 to 3 seats of

supervisors, whe—shall—be—persens—of
legal—competent—and elected by the

shareholders. Directors and supervisors
shall have tenure of 3 years and may be
assume a second term of office if

reelected. 3Fhe—nm+mum—tetal—#eg|stered

Article 14-1: | Of all the seats of directors as mentioned
there shall be at least two (2) seats of
independent directors, and the number of
seats for independent directors shall
constitute at least 1/5 of the total seats of
directors.

The professional qualification, quantity
of shareholding, limitation of job
position, methods of nomination and
other issues for compliance shall be
handled in accordance with the
requirements of the competent authority
of securities.

Of all the seats of directors as mentioned
there shall be at least two (2) seats of
independent directors, and the number of
seats for independent directors shall
constitute at least 1/5 of the total seats of

directors. Fhe-independent-director-shall
be——elected—using—the—eandidates
e i el
192-1 of the Company Act.
The professional qualification, quantity
of shareholding, limitation of job
position, methods of nomination and
eleetion-and other issues for compliance
shall be handled in accordance with the
requirements of the competent authority
of securities.
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Chapter

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

Independent directors and directors are
elected at the same time but with the
elected seats counted separately.

When the number of independent
directors falls below the required number
due to the dismissal of a director for any
reason, the Company shall hold a
re-election at the next following
shareholders” meeting. When all
independent  directors have  been
dismissed, the Company shall convene a
special shareholders’ meeting to hold a
re-election within 60 days from the date
on which the fact occurred.

Independent directors and directors are
elected at the same time but with the
elected seats counted separately.

When the number of independent
directors falls below the required number
due to the dismissal of a director for any
reason, the Company shall hold a
re-election at the next following
shareholders®  meeting. When all
independent  directors have  been
dismissed, the Company shall convene a
special shareholders’ meeting to hold a
re-election within 60 days from the date
on which the fact occurred.

Article 14-2:

Election of the Company’s directors and
supervisors shall proceed using the
cumulative voting system. Each share
shall be empowered with voting rights
equal to the number of elected seats for
directors or supervisors. These voting
rights may be concentrated on one
candidate or spread across multiple
candidates. Where the method shall be
amended as necessary, the
implementation shall be in compliance
with Article 172 of the Company Act,
and the major part shall be explained in
the notice to convene a shareholders’
meeting.

Election of the Company’s directors and
supervisors shall proceed using the
cumulative  single-registered  voting
system. Each share shall be empowered
with voting rights equal to the number of
elected seats for directors or supervisors.
These voting rights may be concentrated
on one candidate or spread across
multiple candidates. Where the method
shall be amended as necessary, the
implementation shall be in compliance
with Article 172 of the Company Act,
and the major part shall be explained in
the notice to convene a shareholders’
meeting.

Chapter VII

Supplementary Provisions

Article 23:

The Articles of Incorporation was
established on January 17, 2007.

The 1st amendment was on March 7,
2007.

The 2nd amendment was on June 27,
2008.

The 3rd amendment was on June 18,
20009.

The 4th amendment was on September
10, 2009.

The 5th amendment was on November
26, 2009.

The 6th amendment was on May 7,
2010.

The 7th amendment was on June 17,
2010.

The 8th amendment was on January 5,
2012.

The Articles of Incorporation was
established on January 17, 2007.

The 1st amendment was on March 7,
2007.

The 2nd amendment was on June 27,
2008.

The 3rd amendment was on June 18,
2009.

The 4th amendment was on September
10, 20009.

The 5th amendment was on November
26, 20009.

The 6th amendment was on May 7,
2010.

The 7th amendment was on June 17,
2010.

The 8th amendment was on January 5,
2012.
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Chapter

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

The 9th amendment was on May 17,
2012.

The 10th amendment was on July 20,
2012.

The 11th amendment was on October 19,
2012.

The 12th amendment was on June 6,
2013.

The 13th amendment was on September
11, 2014.

The 14th amendment was on June 16,
2016.

The 15th amendment was on September
8, 2016.

The 16th amendment was on June 20,
2019.

The 17th amendment was on June 18,

2020.

The 9th amendment was on May 17,
2012.

The 10th amendment was on July 20,
2012.

The 11th amendment was on October 19,
2012.

The 12th amendment was on June 6,
2013.

The 13th amendment was on September
11, 2014.

The 14th amendment was on June 16,
2016.

The 15th amendment was on September
8, 2016.

The 16th amendment was on June 20,
2019.
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Attachment 8. Comparison Table of Amendment to the “Rules of
Procedure for Shareholders Meetings”

After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

2. Scope of Application:

The Rules of Procedures for the shareholders
meetings of the Company, except as otherwise
provided by law, regulation, or the Articles of
Incorporation, shall be duly handled in
accordance with these Rules.

2. Scope of Application:

The Rules of Procedures for the shareholders
meetings of the Company, except as otherwise
provided by the laws, regulations or the articles
of incorporation, shall be as provided in these
Rules.

3. Responsibility:

(1) The board of directors of the Company
authorized the President's Office as the “unit in
charge of shareholders meeting-related matters.”
(2) The wunit for shareholders meeting is
responsible for informing the shareholders of the
shareholders meeting and preparing meeting
materials for the shareholders meeting.

3. Responsibility:
. .

) Iu_nle’ssl —otherwise 'plleuld|EGI lby law—oi
shal-be-convenesd-by-the-board-ofdirectors:
2 The board of directors of the Company
authorized the Finanee-Department as the “unit i
charge of shareholders meeting-related matters

i is responsible for
informing the shareholders on the shareholders

meeting and preparing meeting materials for the
shareholders meeting.

4.  Shareholders meeting convening and
meeting notices:

(1) Unless otherwise provided by the laws or
regulations, the Company's _ shareholders
meetings shall be convened by the board of
directors.

(2) The Company shall prepare the electronic
version of the notice of shareholders meeting,
appointment of agent form, information on
motions for ratification, discussion, the election
or discharge of Directors and Supervisors, and
the motions and causes of motions and upload
the aforementioned information to MOPS at least
30 days before a regular session or at least 15
days before a special session.

(3) The Company shall prepare
parliamentary  procedure  handbook  and
supplementary materials for the meeting in
electronic version and upload the information to
MOPS at least 21 days before a regular session or
15 days before a special session is scheduled.

the

(4) The Company shall prepare the hard copies
of parliamentary procedure handbook and
supplementary materials for the meeting and
make these materials available at the offices of
the Company and the professional share
registration agent commissioned by the Company
or release the materials on the site of the meeting.

4.  Shareholders meeting notices:

& The Company shall prepare the electronic
version of the notice of shareholders meeting,
appointment of agent form, information on
motions for ratification, discussion, the election
or discharge of Directors and Supervisors, and
the motions and causes of motions and upload
the aforementioned information to MOPS at least
30 days before a regular session or at least 15
days before a special session.

2—21 days before the regular session or 15
days before the special session, prepare the hard
copies of parliamentary procedure handbook and
supplementary materials for the meeting and
make these materials available at the offices of
the Company and the professional share
registration agent commissioned by the Company
or release the materials on the site of the meeting.
15 days before the shareholders meetings,
prepare the hard copies of parliamentary
procedure  handbook and  supplementary
materials for the meeting and make these
materials available at the offices of the Company
and the professional share registration agent
commissioned by the Company, or release the
materials on the site of the meeting.

42




After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

(5) The aforementioned notice and
announcement shall contain information on the
cause of the session and may be made in
electronic form at the consent of the respondents.

(6) Motions of election or discharge of
Directors, Supervisors, alteration of the Articles
of Incorporation, reduction of capital, application
for the approval of ceasing its status as a public
company, approval of competing with the
company by directors, surplus profit distributed
in the form of new shares, reserve distributed in
the form of new shares, dissolution, merger, split
up of the company or any matters as set forth in
Paragraph 1, Article 185 of the Company Act,
hereof shall be itemized in the causes or subjects
to be described and the essential contents shall be
explained in the notice to convene a meeting of
shareholders, and shall not be proposed as
impromptu motions.;_the essential contents may
be posted on the website designated by the
competent authority in charge of securities affairs
or the Company, and such website shall be
indicated in the above notice.

(7) _ The convention of the shareholders meeting
has specified the overall reelection of the
directors and the supervisors along with the date
on which the shareholders assumed office. After
the reelection of the shareholders meeting, the
shareholders shall not propose impromptu motion
or other method at the same meeting to change
the date on which the shareholders assumed
office.

(3)—The aforementioned notice and
announcement shall contain information on the
cause of the session and may be made in
electronic form with the consent of the
respondents.

(4) Motions of election or discharge of
Directors, Supervisors, alteration of the Articles
of Incorporation, dissolution, merger, split up of
the company, or anything as stated in Paragraph
1, Article 185 of the Company Act;-Article 26-1;
and Article 56-1 and Article 60-2 of the

Lot e 1l fori I

of —Securities—by—Seeurities—ssuers shall be
explicitly stated in the cause of calling for the
session and cannot be proposed as impromptu
motions.




After amendment

(8 The Company shall specify in its
shareholders meeting notices the time during
which shareholder attendance registrations will
be accepted, the place to register for attendance,
and other matters for attention.

(9) The time during which shareholder
attendance registrations will be accepted, as
stated in the preceding paragraph, shall be at least
30 minutes prior to the time the meeting
commences.

Pre-amendment contents

- the Company before 2 business days before the
. ate. 1f lati o
mee“ﬂg‘b%the_we%hal'mw*%- i 0
(8) The Company shall specify in its
shareholders meeting notices the time during
which shareholder attendance registrations will
be accepted, the place to register for attendance,
and other matters for attention.
The time during which shareholder attendance
registrations will be accepted, as stated in the
preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes
prior to the time the meeting commences.

5.  Appointment of a proxy for the attendance
of a shareholders meeting and authorization:

() For each shareholders meeting, a
shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the
meeting by providing the proxy form issued by
the Company and stating the scope of the proxy's
authorization.

(2) A shareholder may issue only one proxy
form and appoint only one proxy for any g4en
shareholders meeting, and shall del4er the proxy
form to the Company before 5 days before the
date of the shareholders meeting. When duplicate
proxy forms are del4ered, the one rece4ed
earliest shall prevail. unless a declaration is made
to cancel the previous proxy appointment.

(3) After a proxy form has been del4ered to the
Company, if the shareholder intends to attend the
meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronically, a written notice
of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to the
Company before 2 business days before the
meeting date. If the cancellation notice is
submitted after that time, votes cast at the
meeting by the proxy shall prevail.

6. Calculation of the number of shares
represented by the participating shareholders and
the meeting:

(1) Attendance at shareholders meetings shall
be calculated based on numbers of shares. The
number of shares represented by the participating
shareholders shall be calculated based on the
sign-in book or the submitted sign-in cards,
added with the number of shares with voting
rights that are exercised in writing or in
electronic means.

(2) The chair shall call the meeting to order at

5.  Fime-of the shareholders meeting:
Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be
calculated based on numbers of shares. The
number of shares represented by the participating
shareholders shall be calculated based on the
sign-in book or the submitted sign-in cards,
added with the number of shares with voting
rights that are exercised in writing or in
electronic means.

& The chair shall-cal-the—meeting when the

attending shareholders represent a majority of the

total number of issued shares. H-the—appointed
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After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

the appointed meeting time. However, when the
attending shareholders do not represent a
majority of the total number of issued shares, the
chair may announce a postponement, provided
that no more than two such postponements, for a
combined total of no more than 1 hour of
postponements. In the event that after two
postponements, the present shareholders are still
less than one-third of the aggregate total of the
outstanding shares, the chair may announce the
termination of the meeting.

(3) If the quorum does not met after two
postponements as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, but the attending shareholders
represent one third or more of the total number of
issued shares, attending shareholders may reach a
tentat4e resolution pursuant to Paragraph 1,
Article 175 of the Company Act. A notice of such
tentatde resolution shall be g4en to each of the
shareholders, and reconvene a shareholders
meeting within one month.

(4)  When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, if
the attending shareholders represent a majority of
the total number of issued shares, the chair may
resubmit the tentat4e resolution for a vote by the
shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of
the Company Act.

nlleetllngl lt""el Aas—passed—but El'.e _attenﬁdullg
totalhumber—ofissued—shares, the chair may
announce a postponement, provided that no more
than two such postponements, for a combined
total of no more than 1 hour ef-pestpenement,
may be made. If the guerum is not met after two
postponements but the attending shareholders
represent one third or more of the total number of

issued shares, a—tentatde—reselution—may—be
passed-by-a-majority-of these-present pursuant to
Article 175 of the Company Act-

23— Wher—a—tentatde—resolution is made as
referred to in the preceding paragraph, if the
attending shareholders represent a majority of the
total number of issued shares, the chair may-eal

the-meeting—and resubmit the tentat4e resolution
for-a-vote by the shareholders-meeting.

7. Shareholder attendance registration:

(1) The Company shall have a place to register
for attendance and will set up and prepare the
attendance book.

1.The place at which attendance registrations are
accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient
number of suitable personnel assigned to handle
the registrations.

2.The attendance book is for the attending
shareholders to sign, or attending shareholders
may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.
(2) The Company shall furnish attending
shareholders with the parliamentary procedure
handbook, annual report, attendance card,
speaker's slips, voting slips and other meeting
materials; along with the election ballots if the
directors and supervisors are to be elected in that
event.

(3) Shareholders and their proxies (hereinafter
referred to collect4ely as “shareholders”) shall
attend the shareholders meetings based on
attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other
certificates of attendance. This Corporation may
not arbitrarily add requirements for other

(1) The Company shall have a place to register
for attendance and will set up and prepare the
attendance book.

1.The place at which attendance registrations are
accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient
number of suitable personnel assigned to handle
the registrations.

2.The attendance book is for the attending
shareholders to sign, or attending shareholders
may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.
(2) The Company shall furnish attending
shareholders with the parliamentary procedure
handbook, annual report, attendance card,
speaker's slips, voting slips and other meeting
materials.

(3) Shareholders and their proxies (hereinafter
referred to collect4ely as “shareholders”) shall
attend the shareholders meetings based on
attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other
certificates of attendance. This Corporation may
not arbitrarily add requirements for other
documents beyond those showing eligibility to
attend presented by shareholders. Solicitors
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After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

documents beyond those showing eligibility to
attend presented by shareholders. Solicitors
soliciting proxy forms shall also bring
identification documents for verification.

(4) Where the shareholders may be the
government or institutions, more than one
representat4e may be assigned to attend the
meeting. Where an institutional shareholder may
be appointed as a proxy to attend the
shareholders  meeting, such institutional
shareholder may appoint only one representat4e
to the meeting.

soliciting proxy forms shall also bring
identification documents for verification.
(4) Where the shareholders may be the

government or institutions, more than one
representat4e may be assigned to attend the
meeting. Where an institutional shareholder may
be appointed as a proxy to attend the
shareholders ~ meeting, such institutional
shareholder may appoint only one representat4e
to the meeting.
. .

(5)—he Gempan,y Fay—appoint the |eta|||e_e|
AHOENS) Eaft I:awl Gentllledl Pu olic
‘I'H_a_sh&Fe'k}e‘l'd'er_s_meet‘l'ng_- i 0

8.  Chair of the meeting_and participants:

(1) If a shareholders meeting is convened by
the board of directors, the meeting shall be
chaired by the Chairman of the board. When the
Chairman of the board is on leave or for any
reason unable to exercise the powers of the
Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall act in place
of the Chairman; if there is no Vice Chairman or
the Vice Chairman is also on leave or for any
reason unable to exercise the powers of the Vice
Chairman, the Chairman shall appoint one of the
managing directors to act as chair, or, if there are
no managing directors, one of the directors shall
be appointed to act as chair. Where the Chairman
does not make such a designation, the managing
directors or the directors shall select from among
themselves one person to serve as chair.

(2) When a managing director or a director
serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, the managing director or director shall
be one who has held that position for six months
or more and who understands the financial and
business conditions of the Company. The same
shall be true for a representatde of a juristic
person director that serves as chair.

(3) It is advisable that shareholders meetings
convened by the board of directors be chaired by
the Chairman of the board in person and attended
by a majority of the directors, at least one
supervisor in person, and at least one member of
each functional committee on behalf of the
committee. The attendance shall be recorded in
the meeting minutes.

(4) If a shareholders meeting is convened by a
party with power to convene but other than the
board of directors, the convening party shall
chair the meeting. When there are two or more

#.  Chair of the meeting:

(1) If a shareholders meeting is convened by
the board of directors, the meeting shall be
chaired by the Chairman of the board. When the
Chairman of the board is on leave or for any
reason unable to exercise the powers of the
Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall act in place
of the Chairman; if there is no Vice Chairman or
the Vice Chairman also is on leave or for any
reason unable to exercise the powers of the Vice
Chairman, the Chairman shall appoint one of the
managing directors to act as chair or if there are
no managing directors, one of the directors shall
be appointed by-theChairman to act as chair.
Where the Chairman does not make such a
designation, the managing directors or the
directors shall select from among themselves one
person to serve as chair.

When a managing director or a director serves as
chair, as referred to in the preceding paragraph,
the managing director or director shall be one
who has held that position for six months or more
and who understands the financial and business
conditions of the Company. The same shall be
true for a representatde of a juristic person
director that serves as chair.

It is advisable that shareholders meetings
convened by the board of directors be chaired by
the Chairman of the board in person and attended
by a majority of the directors, at least one
supervisor in person, and at least one member of
each functional committee on behalf of the
committee. The attendance shall be recorded in
the meeting minutes.

& If a shareholders meeting is convened by a
party with power to convene but other than the
board of directors, the convening party shall
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such convening parties, they shall mutually select
a chair from among themselves.

(5) The Company may appoint the retained
Attorney(s)-at-Law, Certified Public
Accountant(s) or relevant personnel to participate
in a shareholders meeting.

chair the meeting. When there are twe or more
such convening parties, they shall mutually select
a chair from among themselves.

9.  Meeting Procedure:

(1) If a shareholders meeting is convened by
the board of directors, the meeting agenda shall
be set by the board of directors and the
resolutions of relevant motions (including the
impromptu motions and amendments to the
original motions) shall be voted one by one. The
meeting shall proceed in the order set by the
agenda, which may not be changed without a
resolution of the shareholders meeting.

(2) The provisions of the preceding paragraph
apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders meeting
convened by a party with the power to convene
that is not the board of directors.

(3) The chair may not declare the meeting
adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on
the meeting agenda of the preceding two

arranged paragraphs (including impromptu
motions). If the chair declares the meeting

adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure,
other members in the board of directors shall
comply with the legal procedures to promptly
help the present shareholders elect one person
through a majority vote to continuously chair the
meeting.

(4) The chair shall grant adequate opportunities
for clarification and discussion on an amendment
or impromptu motions posed by a shareholder.
Upon the time believed to be up for resolution,
the chair may announce discontinuation from a
discussion and put the issue for resolution.

(5)  Where directors and supervisors are elected
in a shareholders meeting, the election shall be
duly conducted in accordance with relevant
election regulations of the Company. The
outcome of the election, including the names of
elected directors and supervisors and the number
of election powers so won by them, shall be
announced on-the-spot.

(6) The ballots for the aforementioned election
shall be kept in the box, sealed and signed by the
monitoring personnel, and retained for at least
one vyear. If, however, a shareholder files a
lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company
Act, the recording shall be retained until the

8.  Meeting Procedure:

(1) If a shareholders meeting is convened by
the board of directors, the meeting agenda shall
be set by the board of directors: The meeting
shall proceed in—the—order set by the—agenda,
which may not be changed without a resolution
of the shareholders meeting.

(2) The provisions of the preceding paragraph
apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders meeting
convened by a party with the power to convene
that is not the board of directors.

(3) The chair may not declare the meeting
adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on
the meeting agenda of the preceding two
paragraphs (including impromptu motions). If the
chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation
of the rules of procedure, by agreement of a
majority of the votes represented by the attending
shareholders, the shareholders may continue the
meeting.
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conclusion of the litigation.

10. Notices for proceedings of the meeting:

(1) When a meeting is in_progress, the chair
may announce a break based on time
considerations. Upon occurrence of force
majeure, the chair may rule a suspension from
the meeting and announce the time to resume the
meeting as the actual situations may justify.

(2) The Company shall continuously record
and tape-record the attendance registration of the
shareholders since the start of the registration, the
process of the meeting and the voting and vote
counting process.

(3) The video and audio recording as
mentioned in the preceding paragraph shall be
kept at least for one year. If, however, a
shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189
of the Company Act, the recording shall be
retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

(4) Vote monitoring and counting personnel for
the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the
chair, provided that all monitoring personnel
shall be shareholders of this Corporation.

(5) _The ballots in voting or election process in
a shareholders meeting shall be counted in an
open manner inside the venue and immediately
after vote counting has been completed, the
results of the voting, including the statistical
tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be
announced on-site at the meeting and a record
made of the vote.

(6) Per Article 182 of the Company Act, the
shareholders meeting may resolve a decision to
postpone the meeting within 5 days or to
continue the process of the meeting.

9. Notices for proceedings of the meeting:
(1) When a meeting is ir—progress, the chair

may anpednree a break based on time
considerations.
(2) The Company’s sharcholders weetings

must be recorded in video er audio;—and kept for
at least one year.

(3} Vote monitoring and counting personnel for
the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the
chair, provided that all monitoring personnel
shall be shareholders of this Corporation.

) Immediately after vote counting has been
completed, the results of the voting, including the
statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be
announced on-site at the meeting, and a record
made of the vote.

{5)—H-the-meeting—is—not-over-yet; it may be
postponed or resumed within 5 days, without
further notice or public announcement, —upen

2

11. Speaking of the present shareholders:

(1) Before speaking, an attending shareholder
must specify on a speaker's slip, the subject of
the speech, his/her shareholder account number
(or attendance card number), and account name.
The order in which shareholders speak will be set
by the chair.

(2) A shareholder in attendance who has
submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually
speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When
the content of the speech does not correspond to
the subject g4en on the speaker's slip, the spoken
content shall prevail.

10. Speaking of the present shareholders:

(1) When speaking, an attending shareholder
must fil—n and submit a speaker's slip, the
subject of the speech, his/her shareholder account
number (or attendance card number), and account
name. The erder in which shareholders speak will
be set by the chair.

(2) A shareholder in attendance who has
submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually
speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When
the content of the speech does not correspond to
the subject g4en on the speaker's slip, the spoken
content shall prevail.
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(3) The speech of the attending shareholders
may not be interrupted by other shareholders,
unless otherwise with the consent of the
chairman and the speaking shareholder. The
chairman must stop the offender from speaking.

(4) Except with the consent of the chair, an
attending shareholder may not speak more than
twice on the same proposal and a single speech
may not exceed 5 minutes. Where a shareholder
speaks in _contravention of the rules or beyond
the scope of the specified issues, the chair may
stop the speaker.

(5) When a juristic person shareholder appoints
two or more representatdes to attend a
shareholders meeting, only one of the
representat4des so appointed may speak on the
same proposal.

(6) After a present shareholder completes
his/her speech, the chair may respond either in
person or through a relevant person designated.

(7) Where the meeting place may be equipped
with sound amplifier equipment, the Chair shall
stop any speech del4ered by shareholders not
using the equipment installed by the company.

(3) The speech of the attending shareholders
may not be interrupted by other shareholders,
unless otherwise with the consent of the
chairman and the speaking shareholder. The
chairman must stop the offender from speaking.

(4) Except with the consent of the chair, an
attending shareholder may not speak more than
twice on the same proposal; and a single speech
may not exceed 5 minutes. When the time is
exceeded, the chair may step the shareholder
from speaking.

(5) When a juristic person shareholder appoints
twe or more representatdes to attend a
shareholders meeting, eonly one of the
representatdes so appointed may speak on the
same proposal.

(6) After a present shareholder completes
his/her speech, the chair may respond either in
person or through a relevant person designated.

&9 |||e. EI'E".' Fay—announce o ehs_esntmae
IIH'“'el' dISGHSFSF'IS'IIS III Ell'.e teplells eensmlellesl _tel
the voting.

8) Where the meeting place may be equipped
with sound amplifier equipment, the Chairman
shall stop any speech del4ered by shareholders
not using the equipment installed by the
company.

12. Shareholder(s) holding one percent (1%) or
more of the total number of outstanding shares of
a company may propose to the company a
proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders
meeting:

Shareholders holding 1% or more of the total
outstanding shares of the Company may propose
motions in a regular session according to Article
172-1 of the Company Act. The shareholder
proposing the motion shall attend the meeting in
person or appoint a proxy to attend the meeting
and participate in the discussion of the motion.

11, Shareholder(s) holding one percent (1%) or
more of the total number of outstanding shares of
a company may propose to the company a
proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders
meeting:

Shareholders holding 1% or more of the total
outstanding shares of the Company may propose
motions in a regular session ir-writing according
to Article 172-1 of the Company Act. The
shareholder proposing the motion shall attend the
meeting in person or appoint a proxy to attend
the meeting and participate in the discussion of

the motion. H-the-shareholder's—speech—violates
the agenda or exceeds the scope of the agenda

13. The principle of time and place of the
shareholders meeting:

(1) The venue for a shareholders meeting shall
be the premises of the Company, or a place easily
accessible to shareholders and suitable for a
shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no

12. Place of the shareholders meeting:

The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the
premises of the Company, or a place easily
accessible to shareholders and suitable for a
shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no
earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full

49




After amendment

Pre-amendment contents

earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full
consideration shall be g4en to the opinions of the
independent directors with respect to the place
and time of the meeting.

(2) In the event that the venue for a
shareholders meeting could not be continuously
used until the issues set under the agenda
(including impromptu motions) are concluded,
the shareholders meeting may resolve a decision
to relocate to another venue to continue the

meeting.

consideration shall be g4en to the opinions of the
independent directors with respect to the place
and time of the meeting.

14. \oting on the motion:

(1) A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote
for each share held, except when the shares are
restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares
under Paragraph 2, Article 179 of the Company
Act.

(2) The shareholders of the Company may
execute their voting rights in electronic _means
and writing in a session of the shareholders
meeting; when the voting rights are to be
exercised in writing or electronic means, such
means of exercise shall be expressly provided in
the notice to the shareholders meeting.

(3) A shareholder who exercises his/her/its
voting power at a shareholders meeting in writing
or by way of electronic transmission as set forth
in the preceding paragraph shall be deemed to
have attended the said shareholders meeting in
person, but shall be deemed to have waded
his/her/its voting power in respect4e of any
impromptu motion(s) and/or the amendment(s) to
the contents of the original proposal(s) at the said
shareholders meeting.

(4) In case a shareholder elects to exercise
his/her/its voting power in writing or by way of
electronic transmission specified in the preceding
two paragraphs, his/her/its declaration of
intention shall be served to the Company two
days prior to the scheduled meeting date of the
shareholders meeting, whereas if two or more
declarations of the same intention are served to
the Company, the first declaration of such
intention reced4ed shall prevail, unless a
declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy
appointment.

(5) In case a shareholder who has exercised
his/her/its voting power in writing or by way of
electronic transmission intends to attend the
shareholders meeting in person, he /she/it shall,

13. \Voting on the motion:

& The shareholders of the Company may
execute their voting rights by correspondence or
electronic means in a session of the shareholders
meeting.

2) A shareholder who exercises his/her/its
voting power at a shareholders meeting in writing
or by way of electronic transmission as set forth
in the preceding paragraph shall be deemed to
have attended the said shareholders meeting in
person, but shall be deemed to have waded
his/her/its voting power in respect4e of any
impromptu motion(s) and/or the amendment(s) to
the contents of the original proposal(s) at the said
shareholders meeting.
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two days prior to the meeting date of the
scheduled shareholders meeting and in the same
manner_previously used in exercising his/her/its
voting power, serve a separate declaration of
intention to  rescind  his/her/its  previous
declaration of intention made in exercising the
voting power under the preceding paragraph. In
the absence of a timely rescission of the previous
declaration of intention, the voting power
exercised in writing or by way of electronic
transmission shall prevail. In case a shareholder
has exercised his/her/its voting power in writing
or by way of electronic transmission, and has
also authorized a proxy to attend the shareholders
meeting in his/her/its behalf, then the voting
power exercised by the authorized proxy for the
said shareholder shall prevail.

(6) Unless otherwise provided for in the
Company Act and the Articles of Incorporation of
the Company, the decision of an issue shall be
resolved by a majority vote in the meeting which
is attended by shareholders who represent a
majority of the total issued shares. At the time of
a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person
designated by the chair shall first announce the
total number of voting rights represented by the
attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the
shareholders. After the conclusion of the
meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for
each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for
and against and the number of abstentions shall
be entered into the MOPS.

(7) When there is an amendment or an
alternatde to a proposal, the chair shall present
the amended or alternat4e proposal together with
the original proposal and decide the order in
which they will be put to a vote. When any one
among them is passed, the other proposals will
then be deemed rejected, and no further voting
shall be required.

3} Unless otherwise provided for in the
Company Act and the Articles of Incorporation,
the decision of an issue shall be resolved by a
majority vote in the meeting which is attended by
shareholders who represent a majority of the total

issued shares. An-agenda-is-considered-passed—f
he chai bicction i
same effect as the conventional balot method. At
the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or
a person designated by the chair shall first
announce the total number of voting rights
represented by the attending shareholders,
followed by a poll of the shareholders. After the
conclusion of the meeting, on the same day it is
held, the results for each proposal, based on the
numbers of votes for and against and the number
of abstentions, shall be entered into the MOPS.
4) When there is an amendment or an
alternat4e to a proposal, the chair shall present
the amended or alternat4e proposal together with
the original proposal and decide the order in
which they will be put to a vote. When any one
among them is passed, the other proposals will
then be deemed rejected, and no further voting
shall be required.

15. Calculation of the number of shares with
voting rights and the recusal system:

(1) The voting in the shareholders meetings
shall be calculated based on numbers of shares.
(2) The shares held by shareholders having no
voting right shall not be counted in the total
number of issued shares while adopting a
resolution at a shareholders meeting.
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(3) A shareholder who has a personal interest
in_the matter under discussion at a meeting,
which may impair the interest of the company,
shall not vote nor exercise the voting right on
behalf of another shareholder.

(4) The number of shares mentioned in the
preceding paragraph that could not be exercised
for voting rights shall not be counted as the
voting rights of the shareholders who are already
present in the meeting.

(5) Except for trust enterprises or stock
agencies approved by the competent authority,
when a person who acts as the proxy for two or
more shareholders, the number of voting power
represented by him/her shall not exceed 3% of
the total number of voting shares of the
Company, otherwise, the portion of excess4e
voting power shall not be counted.

16. Meeting minutes and signing items:

(1) Resolutions adopted at a shareholders
meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting, which shall be affixed with the
signature or seal of the chair of the meeting and
shall be distributed to all shareholders of the
company within twenty days after the close of
the meeting. The minutes may be produced and
distributed in electronic means.

(2) The distribution of the minutes of the
shareholders meeting as required in the preceding
paragraph may be effected by means of a public
notice.

(3) The minutes of shareholders meeting shall
record faithfully the date and place of the
meeting, the name of the chair, the method of
adopting resolutions, and a summary of the
essential points of the proceedings and the voting
results (including the statistical tallies of the
numbers of votes) of the meeting. Where
directors and supervisors are elected in a
shareholders meeting, the number of election
powers so won by them shall be disclosed. The
minutes shall be kept persistently throughout the
life of the Company.

of the shareholders meeting:

(1) Resolutions adopted at a shareholders
meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting, which shall be affixed with the
signature or seal of the chair of the meeting and
shall be distributed to all shareholders of the
company within twenty days after the close of
the meeting.

(2) The distribution of the minutes of the
shareholders meeting as required in the preceding
paragraph may be effected by means of a public
notice.

(3) The minutes of shareholders meeting shall
record the date and place of the meeting, the
name of the chair, the method of adopting
resolutions, and a summary of the essential
points of the proceedings and the—results of the
meeting. The minutes shall be kept persistently
throughout the life of the Company.

18. Implementation and amendment:

(1) Any details that are not addressed in this
Rules shall be governed by the Company Act and
relevant regulations.

(2) These Rules, and any amendments hereto,
shall be implemented after adoption by
shareholders meetings.

16. Implementation and amendment:

(1) Any details that are not addressed in this
Rules shall be governed by the Company Act and
relevant regulations.

(2) These Rules, and any amendments hereto,
shall be implemented after adoption by
shareholders meetings.
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3. The criteria that shall be taken into account
when electing directors and supervisors:

(1) The overall composition of the directors shall
be taken into consideration in the election of this
Company’s directors.

(Omitted)

(2) The qualifications that must be possessed by
the supervisor of the Company are as follow:
(Iltem 1 is omitted.)

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(Item 3 is omitted.)

(Item 4 is omitted.)

(Item 5 is omitted.)

(3) In addition to the fact that the Company’s
supervisor holds the above qualifications, at least
one of the supervisors shall be a financial
accounting professional.

(4)  The Company shall refer to the provisions
on independence provided in the “Regulations
Governing  Appointment  of  Independent
Directors and Compliance Matters for Public
Companies” and appoint a suitable supervisor to
enhance the risk management and financial and
operational control of the Company.

(5) At least one (1) supervisor seat shall have no
spousal relationship or familial relationship
within the second degree of kinship with another
supervisor or a director.

(6) A supervisor shall not be concurrently a
director, a managerial officer or other
staff/employee of the company. At least one (1)
of the supervisors shall have a domicile within
the territory of the Republic of China to allow
timely performance of supervisory functions.

3. The criteria that shall be taken into account
when electing directors and supervisors:

(1) The overall composition of the directors shall
be taken into consideration in the election of
directors.

(Omitted)

(2) The qualifications that must be possessed by
the supervisor are on the feft:

(Item 1 is omitted.)

(Item 2 is omitted.)

(Item 3 is omitted.)

(Item 4 is omitted.)

(Item 5 is omitted.)

In addition to the fact that the supervisor holds
the above qualifications, at least one of the
supervisors shall be a financial accounting
professional.

The Company shall refer to the provisions on
independence provided in the “Regulations
Governing  Appointment  of  Independent
Directors and Compliance Matters for Public
Companies” and appoint a suitable supervisor to
enhance the risk management and financial and
operational control of the Company.

At least one (1) supervisor seat shall have no
spousal relationship or familial relationship
within the second degree of kinship with another
supervisor or a director.

A supervisor shall not be concurrently a director,
a managerial officer or other staff/femployee of
the company. At least one (1) of the supervisors
shall have a domicile within the territory of the
Republic of China to allow timely performance
of supervisory functions.

4. Qualifications of independent directors and the
scope of the appointment:

(1) The qualifications of the Company’s
independent director shall be in accordance with
Articles 2, 3 and 4 of the “Regulations Governing
Appointment of Independent Directors and
Compliance Matter for Public Companies.”

(2) The appointment of the Company’s
independent director shall be in accordance with
Articles 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of the “Regulations
Governing  Appointment  of  Independent
Directors and Compliance Matter for Public
Companies” and shall be implemented pursuant

4. Qualifications of independent directors and the
scope of the appointment:

(1) The qualifications of the independent director
shall be in accordance with Articles 2, 3 and 4 of
the “Regulations Governing Appointment of
Independent Directors and Compliance Matter
for Public Companies.”

(2) The appointment of the independent director
shall be in accordance with Articles 5, 6, 7, 8 and
9 of the “Regulations Governing Appointment of
Independent Directors and Compliance Matter
for Public Companies” and shall be implemented
pursuant to Article 24 of the “Corporate
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to Article 24 of the “Corporate Governance Best
Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies.”

Governance Best Practice Principles for

TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies.”

5. The appointment of directors and supervisors:
(1) The appointment of the Company’s directors
and supervisors shall adopt the candidates’
nomination system pursuant to Article 192-1 of
the Company Act.

(Paragraph 2 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 3 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 4 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 5 is omitted.)

(6) Election of the Company’s directors and
supervisors shall proceed using the cumulative
voting system. Each share shall be empowered
with voting rights equal to the number of elected
seats for directors or supervisors. These voting
rights may be concentrated on one candidate or
spread across multiple candidates.

(Paragraph 7 is omitted.)

(8) The number of directors will be as specified
in this Company’s Articles of Incorporation, with
voting  rights  calculated separately  for
independent and non-independent  director
positions. Those receiving ballots representing
the highest numbers of voting rights will be
elected sequentially according to their respective
numbers of votes. When two or more persons
receive the same number of votes, thus exceeding
the specified number of positions, they shall
draw lots for the remaining seats available. The
Chair will draw lots on behalf of any person not
in attendance.

(Paragraph 9 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 10 is omitted.)

(11) Ballots that are found with any of the
following are invalid:

1.The ballots used are not prepared by the board
of directors.

2.Blank ballots are cast into the ballot box.

3.The writing is unclear and indecipherable or
has been altered.

4.1f the candidate is a shareholder, the account
name and shareholder account number are
inconsistent with the Register of Shareholders. If
the candidate is not a shareholder, the name and
identity document number are found to be
inconsistent.

5. The appointment of directors and supervisors:
(1) The appointment of independent directors
shall adopt the candidates’ nomination system
pursuant to Article 192-1 of the Company Act.

(Paragraph 2 is omitted.)
(Paragraph 3 is omitted.)
(Paragraph 4 is omitted.)
(Paragraph 5 is omitted.)
(6) Election of the directors and supervisors shall

proceed using the cumulative single-registered

voting—method. Each share shall be empowered
with voting rights equal to the number of elected

seats for directors or supervisors. These voting
rights may be concentrated on one candidate or
spread across multiple candidates.

(Paragraph 7 is omitted.)

(8) The number of directors will be as specified
in the Articles of Incorporation, with voting
rights calculated separately for independent and
non-independent  director  positions.  Those
receiving ballots representing the highest
numbers of wvoting rights will be elected
sequentially according to their respective
numbers of votes. When two or more persons
receive the same number of votes, thus exceeding
the specified number of positions, they shall
draw lots for the remaining seats available. The
Chair will draw lots on behalf of any person not
in attendance.

(Paragraph 9 is omitted.)

(Paragraph 10 is omitted.)

(11) Ballots that are found with any of the
following en-the-left are invalid:

{1)The ballots used are not prepared by the board
of directors.

{2)Blank ballots are cast into the ballot box.
{3)The writing is unclear and indecipherable or
has been altered.

{4)If the candidate is a shareholder, the account
name and shareholder account number are
inconsistent with the Register of Shareholders. If
the candidate is not a shareholder, the name and
identity document number are found to be
inconsistent.
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5.Ballots, in addition to the candidate account
name (name) or shareholder account number
(identity document number) and assigned number
of suffrage, are found with other texts written.
6.The candidate name filled in the ballots is same
as other shareholders and without the shareholder
account number or identity document available
for identification.

(12) The balloting result, including the elected
directors and supervisors and the number of
votes, shall be announced by the Chair
immediately at the end of the voting period.

{5)Ballots that contain writings other than the
candidate’s name or shareholder ID (or identity
document number).

{6)The candidate name filled in the ballots is
same as other shareholders and without the
shareholder account number or identity document
available for identification.

(12) The balloting result, the elected directors
and supervisors and-the number of votes will be
announced by the Chair immediately at the end
of the voting period.
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Appendix 1. Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for
Conduct

1. Purpose of Establishment and Scope of Application:

The Company engages in commercial activities out of the utmost fairness, honesty,
faithfulness and transparency. The following procedures and guidelines have been
established in accordance with the “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies” and laws in the countries where the Company and
group enterprises operate to fully enforce ethical management, prevent unethical conducts
and outline areas that require employees’ attention when performing duties.

The applicable scope of the Procedures and Guidelines includes the subsidiaries of the

Company and group members, including any juristic persons in which the Company’s

accumulated contributions, direct or indirect, exceed 50 percent of the total funds and other

institutions or juristic persons substantially controlled by the Company.
2. Applicable subjects:

For the purposes of the Procedures and Guidelines, the term “personnel of the Company”

refers to any director, supervisor, manager, employee, mandatary and person having

substantial control, of the Company or the group enterprises and organizations.

Any provision, promise, request, or acceptance of improper benefits by any personnel of the

Company through a third party will be presumed to be an act by the personnel of the

Company.

3. Unethical Conducts:

For the purposes of the Procedures and Guidelines, unethical conduct means that any

personnel of the Company, in the course of their duties, directly or indirectly offers, accepts,

promises or request improper benefits or commits a breach of ethics, illegal acts, or breach
of fiduciary duty for purposes of acquiring or maintaining benefits.

The counterparties of the unethical conduct under the preceding paragraph include public

officials, political candidates, political parties or their staffs, and government-owned or

private-owned enterprises or institutions and their directors, supervisors, managerial officers,
employees, persons having substantial control, or other interested parties.
4. Types of benefits:

For the purposes of these Procedures and Guidelines, the term “benefits” means any money,

gratuity, gift, commission, position, service, preferential treatment, rebate, facilitating

payment, entertainment, dining or any other item of value in whatever form or name.
5. Responsible unit and Responsibilities:

The Company designates the President’s Office as the responsible unit (hereinafter referred

to as the responsible unit) subject to the Board of Directors with sufficient resources and

qualified personnel to be in charge of the amendment, implementation, interpretation, and
advisory services with respect to the Procedures and Guidelines as well as the recording and
filing of reports and supervision of the implementation. The Office is in charge of the

following matters and reports to the Board of Directors on a regular basis (at least once a

year):

(1) Assisting in incorporating ethics and moral values into the Company’s business strategy
and adopting appropriate prevention measures against corruption and malfeasance to
ensure ethical management in compliance with the requirements of laws and
regulations.

(2) Regular analyzing and assessing the risk of unethical conduct within the business scope
to adopt programs to prevent unethical conduct and setting out the standard operating
procedures and conduct guidelines with respect to the Company’s operations and
business in each program.
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(3) Planning the internal organization, structure, and allocation of responsibilities and
setting up check-and-balance mechanisms for mutual supervision of the business
activities within the business scope which are possibly at a higher risk for unethical
conduct.

(4) Promoting and coordinating awareness and educational activities with respect to ethics
policy.

(5) Developing a whistle-blowing system and ensuring its operating effectiveness.

(6) Assisting the Board of Directors and the management to audit and assess the
effectiveness of preventive measures established for ethical management
implementation and assess the compliance of relevant operating procedures, and make
regular reports.

(7) Preparing and preserving the documentation related to the ethical management policy
and its statement of compliance and implementation of promise.

Prohibition against providing or accepting improper benefits:

Except under one of the following circumstances, when directly or indirectly providing,

accepting, promising or requesting any benefits as specified in Article 4, the conduct of the

given personnel of the Company shall comply with the provisions of the “Ethical Corporate

Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies” and the

Procedures and Guidelines, and the relevant procedures shall have been carried out:

(1) The conduct is undertaken to meet business needs and is in accordance with local
courtesy, convention, or custom during domestic (or foreign) visits, reception of guests,
promotion of business and communication and coordination.

(2) The conduct has its basis in ordinary social activities that are attended or others are
invited to hold in line with accepted social custom, commercial purposes or developing
relationships.

(3) Invitations to guests or attendance at commercial activities or factory visits in relation to
business needs, when the method of fee payment, number of participants, class of
accommodations and the time period for the event or visit have been specified in
advance.

(4) Attendance at folk festivals that are open to and invite the attendance of the general
public.

(5) Rewards, emergency assistance, condolence payments or honoraria  from the
management.

(6) Money, property or other benefits offered to or accepted from a person other than
relatives or friends; or gifts of property complying with the social norms or normal
custom given by another party to the majority of the personnel of the Company.

(7) Property complying with the social norms or normal custom received due to
engagement, marriage, maternity, relocation, assumption of a position, promotion or
transfer, retirement, resignation, or severance, or the injury, illness, or death of the
recipient or the recipient’s spouse or lineal relative.

(8) Other conduct that complies with the rules of the Company.

Procedures for handling the acceptance of improper benefits:

Except under any of the circumstances set forth in the preceding article, when any personnel

of the Company are provided with or are promised, either directly or indirectly, any benefits

as specified in Article 4 by a third party, the matter shall be handled in accordance with the
following procedures:

(1) If there is no relationship of interest between the party providing or offering the benefit
and the official duties of the Company’s personnel, the personnel shall report to their
immediate supervisor within 3 days from the acceptance of the benefit, and the
responsible unit shall be notified if necessary.
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(2) If arelationship of interest does exist between the party providing or offering the benefit
and the official duties of the Company’s personnel, the personnel shall return or refuse
the benefit, and shall report to his or her immediate supervisor and notify the
responsible unit. When the benefit cannot be returned, then within 3 days from the
acceptance of the benefit, the personnel shall refer the matter to the responsible unit for
handling.

“A relationship of interest between the party providing or offering the benefit and the official

duties of the Company’s personnel,” as referred to in the preceding paragraph, refers to one

of the following circumstances:

(1) When the two parties have commercial dealings, a relationship of direction and
supervision, or subsidies (or rewards) for expenses.

(2) When a contracting, trading, or other contractual relationship is being sought, is in
progress, or has been established.

(3) Other circumstances in which a decision regarding the Company’s business, or the
execution or non-execution of business, will result in a beneficial or adverse impact.
The responsible unit of the Company shall make a proposal, based on the nature and value
of the benefit under Paragraph 1, that it be returned, accepted on payment, given to the
public, donated to charity, or handled in another appropriate manner. The proposal shall be

implemented after being reported to and approved by the general manager.

Prohibition of and handling procedure for facilitating payments:

The Company shall neither provide nor promise any facilitating payment.

If any personnel of the Company provide or promise a facilitating payment under threat or

intimidation, they shall submit a report to their immediate supervisor stating the facts and

shall notify the responsible unit.

Upon receipt of the report under the preceding paragraph, the responsible unit shall take

immediate action and undertake a review of relevant matters in order to minimize the risk of

recurrence. In a case involving alleged illegality, the responsible unit shall also immediately
report to the relevant judicial agency.

Politically Neutral Position:

The Company upholds the political neutrality without engaging in political donations. The

personnel of the Company shall not discuss political issues or engage in political activities

during the work hours or at the workplace. Also, they shall not post posters, promotional
materials or lecture information related to political activities.

Procedures for handling charitable donations or sponsorships:

Charitable contributions or sponsorship by the Company shall be made in accordance with

the following provisions, report to the chairman for approval, and notify the responsible unit.

Any individual donation at an amount of NT$1,500,000 or more shall be made only after

being reported to and approved by the Board of Directors:

(1) Shall be in compliance with the laws and regulations of the country where the Company
is doing business.

(2) Awritten record of the decision-making process shall be kept.

(3) A charitable donation shall be given to a valid charitable institution and may not be a
disguised form of bribery.

(4) The returns received as a result of any sponsorship shall be specific and reasonable, and
the subject of the sponsorship may not be a counterparty of the Company’s commercial
dealings or a party with which any personnel of the Company has a relationship of
interest.

(5) After a charitable donation or sponsorship has been given, it shall be ascertained that the
destination to which the money flows is consistent with the purpose of the contribution.
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Recusal:

When an underlying matter at a given board of directors meeting concerns the personal
interest of, or the interest of the juristic person represented by, any of the Company’s
directors, supervisors, managers, and other stakeholders attending or present at board
meetings, the concerned person shall state the important aspects of the relationship of
interest at the given board meeting. If his or her participation is likely to prejudice the
interest of the company, the concerned person may not participate in discussion of or voting
on the proposal and shall recuse himself or herself from the discussion or the voting, and
may not exercise voting rights as proxy for another director. The directors shall practice
self-discipline and must not support one another in improper dealings.

Where the spouse, a blood relative within the second degree of kinship of a director or of
any company which has a controlling or subordinate relation with a director has interests in
the matters under discussion in the meeting of the preceding paragraph, such director shall
be deemed to have a personal interest in the matter.

If in the course of conducting company business, any personnel of the Company discovers
that a potential conflict of interest exists involving themselves or the juristic person that they
represent, or that they or their spouse, parents, children, or a person with whom they have a
relationship of interest is likely to obtain improper benefits, the personnel shall report the
relevant matters to both his or her immediate supervisor and the responsible unit, and the
immediate supervisor shall provide the personnel with proper instructions.

No personnel of the Company may use company resources on commercial activities other
than those of the Company, nor may any personnel’s job performance be affected by his or
her involvement in the commercial activities other than those of the Company.

Special unit in charge of confidentiality regime and its responsibilities:

The Company shall set up a special unit charged with formulating and implementing
procedures for managing, preserving, and maintaining the confidentiality of the Company’s
intellectual properties, such as the trade secrets, trademarks, patents and copyrights. It shall
also conduct periodical reviews on the results of implementation to ensure the sustained
effectiveness of the confidentiality procedures.

All personnel of the Company shall faithfully follow the operational directions pertaining to
intellectual properties as mentioned in the preceding paragraph and may not disclose to any
other party any trade secrets, trademarks, patents, works and other intellectual properties of
the Company of which they have learned nor they may inquire about or collect any trade
secrets, trademarks, patents, works and other intellectual properties of the Company
unrelated to their individual duties.

Prohibition Against Insider Trading and the Non-disclosure Agreement:

All Company personnel shall adhere to the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act
and may not take advantage of undisclosed information of which they have learned to
engage in insider trading. Personnel are also prohibited from divulging undisclosed
information to any other party, in order to prevent other party from using such information to
engage in insider trading.

Any organization or person outside of the Company that is involved in any merger,
de-merger, acquisition and share transfer, major memorandum of understanding, strategic
alliance, other business partnership plan or the signing of a major contract by the Company
shall be required to sign a non-disclosure agreement in which they undertake not to disclose
to any other party any trade secrets or other material information of the Company acquired
as a result and that they may not use such information without the prior consent of the
Company.

Prohibition Against Engaging in Unfair Competitive Practices:

The Company shall follow the Fair Trade Act and applicable competition laws and
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regulations when engaging in business activities and avoid actions such as price fixing, bid

rigging, use of output restrictions or quota or share or divide markets by allocating

customers, suppliers, territories, or lines of commerce.

Preventing Product or Service Damage to Stakeholders:

The Company shall collect and understand the applicable laws and regulations and

international standards governing its products and services which it shall observe and gather

all guidelines for announcement to cause personnel of the Company to ensure the

transparency of information about and safety of the products and services in the course of

their research and development, procurement, manufacture, provision, or sale of products

and services.

The Company shall establish and publish on its website a policy on the protection of the

rights and interests of consumers or other stakeholders to prevent its products and services

from directly or indirectly damaging the rights and interests, health, and safety of consumers

or other stakeholders.

Where there are media reports or sufficient facts to determine that the Company’s products

or services are likely to pose any hazard to the safety and health of consumers or other

stakeholders and it is within the scope of responsibility borne by the Company specified in

the “Service terms,” “Disclaimer” and “Privacy Statement” of the Company website, the

Company shall recall those products or suspend the services within 14 workdays, verify the

facts and present a review and improvement plan.

The responsible unit of the Company shall report the event as in the preceding paragraph,

actions taken, and subsequent reviews and corrective measures taken to the board of

directors.

Compliance and Announcement of policy of ethical management to outside parties:

The Company shall require the directors and the senior management to issue a statement of

compliance for the ethical management policy and require the employees to comply with the

ethical management policy in the employment terms and conditions.

he Company shall disclose the established ethical management policy in the internal rules,

annual reports, on the company’s websites, and in other promotional materials, and shall

make timely announcements of the policy in events held for outside parties such as product

launches and investor press conferences, in order to make the suppliers, customers and other

business-related institutions and personnel fully aware of the principles and rules of the

Company with respect to ethical management.

Ethical management evaluation prior to development of commercial relationships:

Before establishing a business relationship with another party, the Company shall first

evaluate the legitimacy and ethical management policy of the distributors, suppliers,

customers or other business counterparties and whether the party has a record of

involvement in unethical conduct to ensure its business conduct is in a fair and transparent

manner without any requesting, offering, or taking bribes.

When conducting the above assessment, the Company may adopt appropriate assessment

procedures for a review of the counterparty with which it will have commercial dealings

with respect to the following matters, in order to gain a comprehensive knowledge of its

ethical management:

(1) The enterprise’s nationality, location of business operations, organizational structure,
and management policy, and place where it will make payment.

(2) Whether the enterprise has adopted an ethical management policy, and the status of its
implementation.

(3) Whether enterprise’s business operations are located in a country with a high risk of
corruption.

(4) Whether the business operated by the enterprise is in an industry with a high risk of
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bribery.

(5) The long-term business condition and degree of goodwill of the enterprise.

(6) Consultation with the enterprise’s business partners on their opinion of the enterprise.

(7) Whether the enterprise has a record of involvement in unethical conduct such as bribery
or illegal political contributions.

Statement of ethical management policy to counterparties in commercial dealings:

Any personnel of the Company, when engaging in commercial activities, shall make a

statement to the trading counterparty about the Company’s ethical management policy and

related rules, and shall clearly refuse to provide, promise, request, or accept, directly or
indirectly, any improper benefits in whatever form or name.

Avoidance of commercial dealings with unethical operators:

All personnel of the Company shall avoid business transactions with an distributor, supplier,

customer, or other counterparties in commercial interactions that is involved in unethical

conduct. When the counterparty or partner in cooperation is found to engage in unethical
conduct, the personnel shall immediately cease dealing with the counterparty and blacklist it
for any further business interaction to implement the ethical management policy of the

Company.

Stipulation of terms of ethical management in contracts:

Before entering into a contract with another party, the Company shall gain a thorough

knowledge of the status of the other party’s ethical management, and shall make observance

of the ethical management policy of the Company part of the terms and conditions of the
contract, stipulating at the least the following matters:

(1) When a party to the contract becomes aware that any personnel has violated the terms
and conditions pertaining to prohibition of acceptance of commissions, rebates, or other
improper benefits, the party shall immediately notify the other party of the violator’s
identity, the manner in which the provision, promise, request, or acceptance was made,
and the monetary amount or other improper benefit that was provided, promised,
requested, or accepted. The party shall also provide the other party with pertinent
evidence and cooperate fully with the investigation. If there has been resultant damage
to either party, the party may claim from the other party and may also deduct the full
amount of the damages from the contract price payable.

(2) Where a party is discovered to be engaged in unethical conduct in its commercial
activities, the other party may terminate or rescind the contract unconditionally at any
time.

(3) Specific and reasonable payment terms, including the place and method of payment and
the requirement for compliance with related tax laws and regulations.

Handling of unethical conduct by personnel of this Corporation:

The Company incentives the insiders and outsiders for informing of unethical or unseemly

conduct and give bonus lower than NT$10,000 depending on the severity of the

whistle-blowing matter. Insiders that have made a false report or malicious accusation shall
be subject to disciplinary action and be removed from office if the circumstance concerned
is material.

The Company shall internally establish and publicly announce an independent internal

mailbox and hotline for whistle-blowing on the website and the intranet or commission an

independent external institution to provide a whistle-blowing mailbox and hotline for the
insiders and outsiders of the Company. A whistleblower shall at least furnish the following
information:

(1) The whistleblower’s name and 1.D. number or anonymous. Also provide the address,
telephone number and e-mail address where it can be reached.

(2) The informed party’s name or other information sufficient to distinguish its identifying
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features.

(3) Specific facts available for investigation.

Personnel who have been assigned to handle misconduct reports must issue written

commitments to maintain confidentiality of the informant’s identity and the report contents.

The Company not only commits to protect informants from mistreatment as a result of their

reports, but shall also assign dedicated units to handle misconduct reports according to the

following procedures:

The responsible unit of the Company shall observe the following procedure to handle the

whistleblowing case:

(1) Information shall be reported to the department head if involving the rank and file and
to an independent director or supervisor if involving a director or a senior executive.

(2) The responsible unit of the Company and the department head or personnel being
reported to in the preceding subparagraph shall immediately verify the facts and, where
necessary, with the assistance of the legal compliance or other related department.

(3) If a person being informed of is confirmed to have indeed violated the applicable laws
and regulations or the Company’s policy and regulations of ethical management, the
Company shall immediately require the violator to cease the conduct and shall make an
appropriate disposition. When necessary, the Company will report to the competent
authority and judiciary for investigation or institute legal proceedings and seek damages
to safeguard its reputation and its rights and interests.

(4) Documentation of case acceptance, investigation processes and investigation results
shall be retained for five years and may be retained electronically. In the event of a suit
in respect of the whistleblowing case before the retention period expires, the relevant
information shall continue to be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

(5) With respect to a confirmed information, the Company shall charge relevant units with
the task of reviewing the internal control system and relevant procedures and proposing
corrective measures to prevent recurrence.

(6) The responsible unit of the Company shall submit to the board of directors a report on
the whistleblowing case, actions taken, and subsequent reviews and corrective
measures.

Actions upon event of unethical conduct by others towards this Corporation:

If any personnel of the Company discovers that another party has engaged in unethical

conduct towards the Company, and such unethical conduct involves alleged illegality, the

Company shall report the relevant facts to the judicial and prosecutorial authorities; where a

public service agency or public official is involved, the Company shall additionally notify

the governmental anti-corruption agency.

Internal Promotion,Establishment of a system for rewards, penalties, and complaints,

and related disciplinary measures:

The Company’s chairman, general manager, or senior management shall communicate the

importance of corporate ethics to its directors, employees and mandataries on a regular

basis.

The Company shall incorporate ethical corporate management in the employee performance

evaluation and human resource policies to establish a clear and effective reward, discipline

and compliant system.

If any personnel of the Company seriously violates ethical conduct, the Company shall

dismiss the personnel from his or her position or terminate his or her employment in

accordance with applicable laws and regulations or the personnel rules of the Company.

The Company shall make disclosure on the Company’s internal website of the title and name

of the person violating ethical conduct, the date and details of the violation, and the actions

taken in response.
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Additional Rules

These Principles and Guidelines shall be implemented after the board of directors grants
approval, and shall be sent to the supervisors and reported at a shareholders’ meeting. The
same procedure shall be followed when the principles have been amended.

The Company submitted these Principles and Guidelines for discussion by the board of
directors pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the board of directors shall take into full
consideration each independent director’s opinions. If an independent director expresses any
objection or reservation about a matter, it shall be recorded in the board meeting minutes. An
independent director intending to express an objection or reservation but unable to attend the
meeting in person shall, unless there is some legitimate reason to do otherwise, issue a
written opinion in advance, which shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.
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Appendix 2. Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles

1.

Purpose and Scope of Application:

The Principle is established by the Company to foster a corporate culture of ethical
management, sound development and good business operation.

The Principle includes the subsidiaries of the Company and group members, including any
juristic persons in which the Company’s accumulated contributions, direct or indirect,
exceed 50 percent of the total funds and other institutions or juristic persons substantially
controlled by the Company (hereinafter referred to as group members).

Prohibition Against Unethical Conducts:

When engaging in commercial activities, the Company’s directors, supervisors, managers,
employees, mandataries, or persons having substantial control over the Company
(hereinafter referred to as substantial controllers) shall not directly or indirectly offer,
promise to offer, request or accept any improper benefits, nor commit any unethical acts
including breach of ethics, illegal acts, or breach of fiduciary duty (hereinafter referred to
as unethical conduct) for purposes of acquiring or maintaining benefits.

The counterparties of the unethical conduct under the preceding paragraph include public
officials, political candidates, political parties or their staffs, and government-owned or
private-owned enterprises or institutions and their directors, supervisors, managerial
officers, employees, substantial controllers, or other interested parties.

Types of benefits:

“Benefits” in Principle means any valuable things, including money, endowments,
commissions, positions, services, preferential treatment or rebates of any type or in any
name. Benefits received or given occasionally in accordance with accepted social customs
without adversely affecting the specific rights and obligations shall be excluded.
Compliance:

The Company shall comply with the Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act, Business
Entity Accounting Act, Political Donations Act, Anti-Corruption Act, Government
Procurement Act, Act on Recusal of Public Servants Due to Conflicts of Interest,
TWSE/GTSM Listing rules or other laws or regulations regarding commercial activities, as
the underlying basic premise to facilitate ethical corporate management.

Policies:

The Company shall abide by the operational philosophies of honesty, transparency and
responsibility, base policies approved by the Board of Directors on the principle of good
faith and establish good corporate governance and risk control and management
mechanism so as to create an operational environment for sustainable development.
Preventions:

The Company shall in their own ethical management policy clearly and thoroughly
prescribe the specific ethical management practices and the programs to forestall unethical
conduct (hereinafter referred to as “prevention solutions”), including operating procedures,
guidelines and training.

The Company’s prevention solutions shall comply with the laws of the locations in which
the Company and their group members operate.

In the course of developing the prevention solutions, the Company shall communicate with
the employee, labor unions members, important trading counterparties, or other
stakeholders.

Scope of Preventive Solutions:

For the risk of unethical conduct, the Company shall establish the assessment mechanism
and regularly analyze and assess the business activities within their business scope which
are possibly at a higher risk of being involved in an unethical conduct to establish
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preventive solutions and review the adequacy and effectiveness of the solutions on a

regular basis.

The prevention solutions established by the Company shall refer to standards or guidelines

generally used in Taiwan and abroad and at least include the following preventive

measures:

(1) Offering and acceptance of bribes.

(2) Hlegal political donations.

(3) Improper charitable donations or sponsorship.

(4) Offering or acceptance of unreasonable presents or hospitality, or other improper
benefits.

(5) Misappropriation of trade secrets and infringement of trademark rights, patent rights,
copyrights, and other intellectual property rights.

(6) Engaging in unfair competitive practices.

(7) Damage directly or indirectly caused to the rights or interests, health, or safety of
consumers or other stakeholders in the course of research and development,
procurement, manufacture, provision, or sale of products and services.

Commitments and Execution:

The Company shall require the directors and the senior management to issue a statement of

compliance for the ethical management policy and require the employees to comply with

the ethical management policy in the employment terms and conditions.

The Company and group members shall state explicitly in the rules, external documents

and the Company website their commitments to business integrity, as well as Board of

Directors’ and the senior management’s commitment to enforcing integrity policies. These

commitments need to be reflected accordingly in internal management practices and

external commercial activities.

The Company shall prepare and preserve the documentation of the ethical management

policy specified in Paragraph 1 and 2 and its statement, promise and implementation.

Integrity in Commercial Activities:

The Company shall engage in commercial activities in a fair and transparent manner based

on the principle of ethical management.

Prior to engaging in commercial transactions, the Company is required to evaluate the

legitimacy of the distributors, suppliers, customers and any counterparties, and investigate

whether or not any of them are involved in unethical conduct to avoid any dealings with
persons so involved.

Contracts signed by the Company with distributors, suppliers, customers or other

counterparties shall include clauses that requires compliance with ethical corporate

management policy and gives the Company the right to terminate or rescind the contract if
the counterparty is involved in unethical conduct.

Prohibition Against Offering and Acceptance of Bribery:

When carrying out business activities, the Company and the directors, supervisors,

managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers of the Company may not

offer, guarantee, request or accept any form of illegitimate benefits with customers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, government officials or other stakeholders, whether
directly or indirectly.

Prohibition Against lllegal Political Donations:

Any donations made directly or indirectly to political parties, campaigns or individuals by

the Company and the directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and

substantial controllers of the Company must comply with the Political Donations Act and
the Company’s internal procedures. These donations cannot be exploited as means of
obtaining commercial benefits or advantages.
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Prohibition Against Improper Charitable Donations or Sponsorship:
Any donations or sponsorships made by the Company and the directors, supervisors,
managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers of the Company to charity
organizations must comply with the relevant laws and the internal procedures of the
Company. These donations and sponsorships cannot be exploited as means of bribery.
Prohibition Against Inappropriate Gifts, Treatments and Illegitimate Benefits:
The Company and the directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers of the Company shall not directly or indirectly offer or accept any
unreasonable presents, hospitality or other improper benefits to establish business
relationship or influence commercial transactions.
Prohibition Against Infringement of Intellectual Property Rights:
The Company and the directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries and
substantial controllers of the Company shall comply strictly with relevant intellectual
property laws, internal procedures of the Company and contract terms. Except with the
consent of the intellectual property rights owner, the Company may not use, disclose,
dispose, destroy or commit any action that constitutes infringement of intellectual property
rights.

Prohibition Against Engaging in Unfair Competitive Practices:

The Company shall comply with relevant competition laws when engaging in business

activities, and avoid actions such as price fixing, bid rigging, use of output restrictions or

quota or share or divide markets by allocating customers, suppliers, territories or lines of
commerce.

Preventing Product or Service Damage to Stakeholders:

In the course of research and development, procurement, manufacture, provision, or sale of

products and services, the Company and the directors, supervisors, managers, employees,

mandataries, and substantial controllers of the Company shall observe applicable laws and
regulations and international standards to ensure the transparency of information about and
safety of, their products and services. They shall also establish and publish a policy on the
protection of the rights and interests of consumers or other stakeholders and carry out the
policy in their operations to prevent the products and services from directly or indirectly
damaging the rights and interests, health and safety of consumers or other stakeholders.

Where there are sufficient facts to determine that the company’s products or services are

likely to pose any hazard to the safety and health of consumers or other stakeholders, the

company shall, in principle, recall those products or suspend the services immediately.

Organization and Responsibilities:

The directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and substantial controllers

of the Company shall exercise the duty of care as prudent managers to supervise and

prevent unethical conduct, while constantly review the implementation performance and
ongoing improvement to ensure the sound execution of ethical management policy.

To achieve sound ethical management, the Company shall establish a dedicated unit

(President’s Office) subject to the Board of Directors with sufficient resources and

qualified personnel to be responsible for the establishment and implementation supervision

of the ethical management policy and prevention solutions. The Division is in charge of the

following matters and report to the Board of Directors on a regular basis (at least once a

year):

(1) Assisting in incorporating ethics and moral values into the Company’s business
strategy and adopting appropriate prevention measures against corruption and
malfeasance to ensure ethical management in compliance with the requirements of
laws and regulations.

(2) Regular analyzing and assessing the risk of unethical conduct within the business
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scope to adopt programs to prevent unethical conduct and setting out the standard
operating procedures and conduct guidelines with respect to the Company’s operations
and business in each program.

(3) Planning the internal organization, structure, and allocation of responsibilities and
setting up check-and-balance mechanisms for mutual supervision of the business
activities within the business scope which are possibly at a higher risk for unethical
conduct.

(4) Promoting and coordinating awareness and educational activities with respect to ethics
policy.

(5) Developing a whistle-blowing system and ensuring its operating effectiveness.

(6) Assisting the Board of Directors and the management to audit and assess the
effectiveness of preventive measures established for ethical management
implementation and assess the compliance of relevant operating procedures, and make
regular reports.

Compliance in Business Dealings:

The Company and the directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and

substantial controllers of the Company are bound to comply with the laws and the

preventive solutions when conducting business activities.

Recusal:

The Company shall establish policies for preventing conflicts of interest to identify,

supervise and manage potential conflicts of interest that may give rise to dishonest

behaviors, and implement channels for directors, supervisors, managers, and stakeholders
attending or present at board meetings to state their conflicting interests with the Company.

When a proposal at a given board of directors meeting concerns the personal interest of, or

the interest of the juristic person represented by, any of the Company’s directors,

supervisors, managers and other stakeholders attending or present at board meetings, the
concerned person shall state the important aspects of the relationship of interest at the
given board meeting. If his or her participation is likely to prejudice the interest of the

Company, the concerned person may not participate in discussion of or voting on the

proposal and shall recuse himself or herself from the discussion or the voting, and may not

exercise voting rights as proxy for another director. The directors shall practice
self-discipline and must not support one another in improper dealings.

The Company and the directors, supervisors, managers, employees, mandataries, and

substantial controllers of the Company must not exploit their vested authorities or

influences for improper gains, whether for themselves or for spouse, parents, children or
any other parties.

Accounting and Internal Control:

The Company shall establish effective accounting system and internal control system for

business activities with higher risk of being involved in an unethical conduct, not have

under-the-table accounts or keep secret accounts, and conduct reviews regularly so as to

The internal audit unit of the Company shall draft relevant audit plan including the subject,

scope, items and frequency of the audit based on the risk assessment result of the unethical

conduct to review the compliance of the preventive solutions. The CPA shall be appointed
to carry out the audit, and may engage professionals to assist if necessary.

The preceding audit result shall be reported to the senior management and the responsible

unit of ethical management and submit to the Board of Director in the form of an audit

report.

Training and Appraisal:

The Company’s chairman, general manager, or senior management shall communicate the

importance of corporate ethics to the directors, employees, and mandataries on a regular
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22.

23.

24,

25.

basis.

The Company shall periodically organize education training and promotions for the

directors, managers, employees, mandataries and substantial controllers and invite the

commercial transaction counterparties of the Company so that they are adequately aware
of the Company’s commitment, policies and preventive solutions in regards to ethical
management, and consequences for engaging in unethical conduct.

The Company shall integrate the policies of ethical corporate management with the

employee performance evaluation and human resource policies to establish a clear and

effective reward and discipline system.

Whistle-blowing System:

The Company shall adopt a concrete whistle-blowing system and scrupulously operate the

system. The whistle-blowing system shall include at least the following:

(1) Establishing and announcing an independent internal mailbox and hotline for
whistle-blowing or commission an independent external institution to provide a
whistle-blowing mailbox and hotline for the insiders and outsiders of the Company.

(2) The Company shall assign dedicated personnel or unit to handle whistle-blowing. Any
whistle-blowing involving a director or senior management shall be escalated to the
independent directors or supervisors. The Company shall also establish categories of
the whistle-blowing and standard operating procedures for the investigation.

(3) After the completion of the established whistle-blowing investigation procedure, the
Company will take the following actions depending on the severity and report to the
component authority or the judiciary when necessary

(4) Documentation of case acceptance, investigation processes, investigation results, and
relevant documents.

(5) Confidentiality of the identity of whistle-blowers and the content of reported cases.
Also, anonymous whistle-blowing is permitted.

(6) Measures for protecting whistle-blowers from inappropriate disciplinary actions due to
their whistle-blowing.

(7) Whistle-blowing incentive measures.

When material misconduct or likelihood of material impairment to the Company’s

awareness upon investigation, the dedicated personnel or unit handling the whistle-blowing

shall immediately prepare a report and notify the independent directors or supervisors in
written form.

Discipline and Grievance System:

The Company shall establish and announce a system that facilitates the reporting and

discipline of conducts that violate the integrity policy and shall make immediate disclosure

on the Company’s internal website of the title and name of the violator, the date and details
of the violation, and the actions taken in response.

Information Disclosure:

The Company shall collect quantitative data about the promotion of ethical management,

continuously analyze and assess the effectiveness of the promotion of ethical management

policy and disclose the measures of the Company for implementing ethical corporate
management, the status of implementation, the foregoing quantitative data and the
effectiveness of promotion on the Company website, annual report and prospectus. The

Company also shall disclose the Principles on the Market Observation Post System.

Review and Amendment of Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles

and Measures:

The Company shall at all times monitor the development of relevant local and international

regulations concerning ethical corporate management and encourage the directors,

supervisors, managers and employees to make suggestions to review and improve the
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26.

ethical management policies established by the Company and the measures taken to
achieve enhance the implementation efficiency of the ethical management.

Additional Rules:

The principles shall be implemented upon approval from the Board of Directors, and are
submitted to the supervisors and the shareholders’ meeting. The same apply to subsequent
amendments.

When submitting the Principles for discussion by the Board of Directors pursuant to the
preceding paragraph, the Company shall fully consider the opinions of the independent
directors. All objections and reserved opinions expressed by independent directors must be
detailed in the board meeting minutes. If the independent director is unable to express
objections or reservations in person during the Board of Directors meeting, they shall issue
a written opinion in advance, which shall be recorded in the meeting minutes, unless there
is some legitimate reason to do otherwise.

Matters that are not specified in the Rules shall be handled in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations.
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Appendix 3. Articles of Incorporation

Chapter | General Provision

Article 1: The Company has been duly incorporated in accordance with the Company Act
and titled ADDCN Technology Co., Ltd.
Article 2: The Company’s business services are as follows:

CC01110  Computers and Computing Peripheral Equipments
Manufacturing

CCO01120 Data Storage Media Manufacturing and Duplicating

F109070  Wholesale of Stationery Articles, Musical Instruments and
Educational Entertainment Articles

F113020  Wholesale of Household Appliance

F113050  Wholesale of Computing and Business Machinery
Equipment

F113070  Wholesale of Telecom Instruments

F118010  Wholesale of Computer Software

F119010  Wholesale of Electronic Materials

F209060  Retail sale of Stationery Articles, Musical Instruments and
Educational Entertainment Articles

F213010  Retail Sale of Household Appliance

F213030  Retail sale of Computing and Business Machinery
Equipment

F213060  Retail Sale of Telecom Instruments

F218010  Retail Sale of Computer Software

F219010  Retail Sale of Electronic Materials

F399040  Retail Business Without Shop

F601010 Intellectual Property

G801010  Warehousing and Storage

1103060 Management Consulting Services

1301010 Software Design Services

1301020 Data Processing Services

1301030 Digital Information Supply Services

1401010 General Advertising Services

1401020 Leaflet Distribution

1202010 Typewriting Services

1204010 Translation Services

1212010 Manpower Services

1213010 Internet Identify Services

1215010 Marketing Research and Opinion Poll

J101010 Buildings Cleaning Service

J302010 Press Release

J303010 Magazine and Periodical Publication

J304010 Book Publishers

JB01010 Exhibition Services

H703090  Real Estate Commerce

H703100 Real Estate Rental and Leasing

JZ99050 Agency Services

7799999  All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by

law, except those that are subject to special approval.
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Article 3:

Article 4:

Article 5;

Article 5-1;

Article 5-2:

C302010  Knit Fabric Mills

C303010  Non-woven Fabrics Mills

C306010  Outerwear Knitting Mills

C307010  Apparel, Clothing Accessories and Other Textile Product
Manufacturing

C402030  Leather and Fur Products Manufacturing

CK01010  Footwear Manufacturing

CMO01010 Luggage and Bag Manufacturing

F104110  Wholesale of Cloths, Clothes, Shoes, Hat, Umbrella and
Apparel, Clothing Accessories and Other Textile Products

F204110  Retail sale of Cloths, Clothes, Shoes, Hat, Umbrella and
Apparel, Clothing Accessories and Other Textile Products

1701011 Occupation Services

1301040 the third party payment

The Company located its headquarters in New Taipei City and may establishes
overseas branches according to the resolution of the Board of Directors if
necessary.

The means of public notice used by the Company shall comply with Article 28 of
the Company Act.

Chapter Il Shares of Stock

The Company has an authorized capital of NT$1 billion in 100 million shares. Each
share has a value of NT$10. The board of directors is authorized to issue the
remaining shares over multiple offerings. The aforementioned total capital amount
has three million shares reserved to issue employees the share subscription warrant.
Where the Company may elect to revoke its public offering of stocks after going
public, besides the approval of the board of directors, the matter shall be submitted
to the resolution of the shareholders meeting, and an application shall be filed to the
competent authority afterwards.

The aforesaid resolution at the meeting of shareholders shall be adopted by a
majority of the shareholders present who represent two-thirds or more of the total
number of its outstanding shares.

In the event the total number of shares represented by the shareholders present at a
shareholders’ meeting is less than the percentage of the total shareholdings required
in the preceding Paragraph, the resolution may be adopted by two-third of the
voting rights exercised by the shareholders present at the shareholders’ meeting
who represent a majority of the outstanding shares of the company.

Employees, including the employees of parents or subsidiaries of the company
meeting certain specific requirements, are entitled to receive the treasury stocks
purchased by the Company pursuant to the Company Act.

Employees of the Company, including the employees of parents or subsidiaries of
the company meeting certain specific requirements, are entitled to receive the share
subscription warrant.

Employees of the Company, including the employees of parent s or subsidiaries of
the company meeting certain specific requirements, are entitled to purchase the new
shares issued by the Company.

Employees of the Company, including the employees of parents or subsidiaries of
the company meeting certain specific requirements, are entitled to receive restricted
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Article 6:
Article 7:

Article 8:

Article 8-1:

Article 9:

Article 9-1:

Article 10:

Article 11:

stock for employees issued by the Company.

Deleted.

The Company shall assign its share certificates with serial numbers. The stocks
shall be registered and the share certificates shall be affixed with the signatures or
personal seals of more than three (3) directors, and shall be duly certified or
authenticated in accordance with the laws before issuance thereof. After publicly
issuing the shares, the Company may be exempted from printing any share
certificate for the shares issued but shall register the issued shares with a
centralized securities depositary enterprise.

The entries in the sharcholders’ roster shall not be altered within 30 days prior to
the convening date of a regular shareholders’ meeting, or within 15 days prior to
the convening date of a special shareholders’ meeting, or within 5 days prior to the
target date fixed by the issuing company for distribution of dividends, bonus or
other benefits. The entries in the shareholders’ roster shall not be altered within 60
days prior to the convening date of a regular shareholders’ meeting or within 30
days prior to the convening date of a special shareholders’ meeting, or within 5
days prior to the target date fixed by the issuing company for distribution of
dividends, bonus or other benefits.

Unless otherwise specified in the laws or regulations set by the central competent
authority, the Company shall comply with the Company Act and the

Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public
Companies for the implementation of the shareholder’s stock affairs.

Chapter I11 General Meeting of Shareholders

The general meeting of shareholders may convene in regular sessions or special
sessions. Regular session will usually be convened by the board of directors once a
year within six (6) months after the end of a fiscal year. Special sessions may be
convened at any time, as needed.

Shareholders’ meetings that are convened by the board of directors shall be chaired
by the Chairman. If the Chairman is absent for any reason, the Chairman shall
appoint one of the directors to act on his/her behalf. If no one is appointed, the
remaining directors shall appoint one among themselves to perform the Chairman’s
duties on the behalf. Where an entitled third party other than the board of directors
may call for a shareholders meeting, such party shall preside over the meeting. In
case there are two entitled parties calling for the shareholders meeting, one of them
shall be nominated to preside over the meeting.

If specific shareholder cannot attend the shareholders’ meeting in person, such
shareholder may use the authorization of agent printed by the Company and specify
the scope of authorization for appointing a proxy to attend the meeting. The
implementation of the appointment of a proxy for the attendance of a shareholders’
meeting shall be in compliance with Articles 177 to 177-2 of the Company Act and
the “Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder
Meetings of Public Companies” published by the competent authority.

The shareholder of the Company shall be entitled to one vote for each share held,
except when the voting rights are restricted or the shares are considered non-voting
shares under Article 179 of the Company Act.

In case a director or supervisor of the Company whose shares are issued to the
public has created a pledge on the Company’s shares more than half of the
Company’s shares being held by him/her/it at the time he/she/it is elected, the
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Article 12:

Article 12-1:

Article 13:

Article 14:

Article 14-1:

Article 14-2:

voting power of the excessive portion of shares shall not be exercised and the
excessive portion of shares shall not be counted in the number of votes of
shareholders present at the meeting.

When the shareholders’ meeting is in session, votes can be cast by correspondence
or electronic means. Where the Company adopt both voting by correspondence or
electronic means, it shall specify the detail of voting by correspondence or
electronic means in the notice of shareholders’ meeting.

Resolutions at a shareholders meeting shall, unless otherwise provided for in
relative laws, be adopted by a majority vote of the shareholders present, who
represent more than one-half of the total number of voting shares.

Resolutions adopted at a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of
the meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chair of the
shareholders meeting and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the Company
within twenty (20) days after the close of the meeting.

The distribution of the minutes of shareholders’ meeting as required in the
preceding paragraph may be effected by means of a public notice.

The minutes of the shareholders’ meeting shall record the date and place of the
meeting, the name of the chair, the method of adopting resolutions, and a summary
of the essential points of the proceedings and the results of the meeting. The
minutes of meeting, attendance list bearing the signatures of shareholders present at
the meeting and the powers of attorney of the proxies shall be kept in the Company.
The time that the materials shall be kept are in compliance with Article 183 of the
Company Act.

Deleted.

Chapter IV Directors and Supervisors

The Company shall establish 5 to 7 seats of directors and 1 to 3 seats of
supervisors, who shall be persons of legal competent and elected by the
shareholders. Directors and supervisors shall have tenure of 3 years and may be
assume a second term of office if reelected. The minimum total registered shares
owned by all directors and supervisors of the public Company shall be in
accordance with the regulations in the “Rules and Review Procedures for Director
and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at Public Companies.”

Of all the seats of directors as mentioned there shall be at least two seats of
independent directors, and the number of seats for independent directors shall
constitute at least 1/5 of the total seats of directors. The independent director shall
be elected using the candidates nomination system according to Article 192-1 of the
Company Act. The professional qualification, quantity of shareholding, limitation
of job position, methods of nomination and election and other issues for
compliance shall be handled in accordance with the requirements of the competent
authority of securities.

Independent directors and directors are elected at the same time but with the elected
seats counted separately.

When the number of independent directors falls below the required number due to
the dismissal of a director for any reason, the Company shall hold a re-election at
the next following shareholders’ meeting. When all independent directors have
been dismissed, the Company shall convene a special shareholders’ meeting to hold
a re-election within 60 days from the date on which the fact occurred.

Election of the Company’s directors and supervisors shall proceed using the
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Article 15:

Article 15-1:

Article 15-2:

Article 16:

Article 16-1;

Article 17:

Article 17-1;

Article 17-2:

Article 18:

cumulative single-registered voting system. Each share shall be empowered with
voting rights equal to the number of elected seats for directors or supervisors. These
voting rights may be concentrated on one candidate or spread across multiple
candidates. Where the method shall be amended as necessary, the implementation
shall be in compliance with Article 172 of the Company Act, and the major part
shall be explained in the notice to convene a shareholders meeting.

The board of directors shall be organized by directors. A Chairman shall be elected
among board members during a board meeting with more than two-thirds of
directors present, and with the support of more than half of all attending directors.
The Chairman represents the Company externally. A Vice Chairman shall be
elected in the same manner.

Unless otherwise specified in the Company Act, resolutions of the board of
directors may be made by a session with the presence of at least half of the seats of
directors and by a simple majority of these directors. Unless otherwise specified in
relative laws and regulations, the director that cannot attend the meeting shall
appoint another director to attend the meeting with the power of attorney stating
therein the scope of power authorized to the proxy. Each director may be appointed
by one director to act as proxy in the meeting.

The convention of the board of directors shall be in compliance with Article 204 of
the Company Act. However, in case of emergency, a meeting may be convened at
any time. The convention mentioned above may be called with notice in writing,
e-mail or fax.

In the absence of the Chairman or the Chairman is unable to perform its duties, the
substitution shall be duly handled in accordance with Article 208 of the Company
Act.

When the number of vacancies in the board of directors of the Company equals to
one third of the total number of directors, or all the supervisors are dismissed, the
board of directors shall call, within 30 days, a special shareholders meeting to elect
succeeding directors to fill the vacancies. The newly elected personnel shall fulfill
the unexposed term of office of the predecessor. In the case of the Company has
issued the shares to the public, the special shareholders meeting for electing
succeeding directors shall be convened by the board of directors within 60 days.
The board of directors is authorized to determine the remuneration and travel
allowance for all directors and supervisors based on individual participation and
contribution to the Company’s operations and with reference to industry peers.

The supervisor is responsible for supervising all business operations of the
Company according to the laws and the resolution by the shareholders meeting.
The supervisor may attend the board of directors’ meeting and present opinions, but
they do not have the voting right.

The Company may purchase liability insurance for director, supervisors or other
important employees during their terms to insure itself against possible claims that
may arise as a result of directors’ and supervisors’ decisions. The board of directors
is authorized to determine the amount insured and the insurance matters.

Chapter V Managers

The Company shall employ several managers and the appointment and dismissal of
whom shall be carried out pursuant to Article 29 of the Company Act.

Chapter VI Accounting Policy
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Article 19:

Article 20:

Article 20-1:

Article 20-2:

Article 21:

Article 22:

Article 22-1:

Article 23:

At the end of the fiscal year, the board of directors shall prepare (1) business report
(1) financial statements (I11) proposal of earnings distribution or loss
reimbursement and related documents, and submit these materials to the
supervisors for a review 30 days prior to the scheduled date of the regular
shareholders meeting. The materials then will be submitted to the shareholders
meeting for ratification.

Annual profits concluded by the Company shall be subject to employees’
remuneration of no less than 1% and the directors and supervisors’ remuneration
may be provided up to 3% of the annual profits. However, the company’s
accumulated losses shall have been covered first.

Employees’ remuneration, as mentioned above, can be paid in shares or cash to
employees of parents or subsidiaries of the company meeting certain specific
requirements.

If the Company has a profit at the year’s final accounting, it shall first pay
profit-seeking enterprise income tax and make up any losses from past years, and
then make contribution of 10% of the balance to the statutory reserve, unless the
statutory reserve reaches the amount of the Company paid-in capital. Special
reserves may be set aside depending on the Company’s operating needs pursuant to
the laws and regulations. The remaining profits deducting the dividend distribution
amount with the undistributed earnings at beginning of period (if any) shall be
proposed for a distribution by the board of directors. The proposal shall then be
submitted to the shareholders meeting for a resolution for the distribution.

The Company is now at the growth stage, the dividend will be distributed in the
form of stock dividends or cash dividends based on the Company’s demand for
funds in the future and the level of dilution of the capital stock. In principle the
cash dividends shall not be lower than 10% of the total amount of the dividends.
Only that the dividend type and percentage to be distributed are based on actual
profits of the year and the status of the funds. The final result is subject to the
resolution of the shareholders meeting.

Chapter VII Supplementary Provisions

The Company may make direct investment and act as a guarantor for business
purposes. Besides, the Company may become a shareholder of limited liability in
other companies with the resolution of the board of directors. And the total amount
of its investments in such other companies is not subject to the restrictions imposed
under Article 13 of the Company Act.

Anything not covered by this Articles of Incorporation shall be governed by the
Company Act and other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation and enforcement rules are stipulated
separately by the board of directors.

The Articles of Incorporation was established on January 17, 2007.

The 1st amendment was on March 7, 2007.

The 2nd amendment was on June 27, 2008.

The 3rd amendment was on June 18, 2009.

The 4th amendment was on September 10, 2009.

The 5th amendment was on November 26, 2009.

The 6th amendment was on May 7, 2010.

The 7th amendment was on June 17, 2010.
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The 8th amendment was on January 5, 2012.

The 9th amendment was on May 17, 2012.

The 10th amendment was on July 20, 2012.

The 11th amendment was on October 19, 2012.
The 12th amendment was on June 6, 2013.

The 13th amendment was on September 11, 2014.
The 14th amendment was on June 16, 2016.

The 15th amendment was on September 8, 2016.
The 16th amendment was on June 20, 2019.

ADDCN TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Chairman: Shih-Fang Liao
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Appendix 4. Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings
1. Purpose:

To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for this

Company’s shareholders meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these Rules

are adopted pursuant to the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TSEC/TPEx

Listed Companies.

2. Scope of Application:

The rules of procedures for the Company’s shareholders’ meetings, except as otherwise

provided by law, regulation, or the articles of incorporation, shall be as provided in these

Rules.

3. Responsibility:

(1) Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, this Company’s shareholders’ meetings
shall be convened by the board of directors.

(2) The board of directors of the Company authorized the Finance Department as the “unit
in charge of shareholders’ meeting-related matters.”

(3) The Finance Department is responsible for informing the shareholders of the
shareholders’ meeting and preparing meeting materials for the shareholders meeting.

4. Shareholders’ meeting notices:

(1) The company shall prepare the electronic version of the notice of meeting, appointment
of agent form, information on motions for ratification, discussion, the election or
discharge of Directors and Supervisors, and the motions and causes of motions and
upload the aforementioned information to MOPS at least 30 days before a regular
session or at least 15 days before a special session of the General Meeting.

(2) In addition, the Company shall also prepare the parliamentary procedure handbook and
supplementary materials for the meeting in electronic version and upload the
information to MOPS at least 21 days before a regular session or 15 days before a
special session is scheduled, and prepare the hard copies of parliamentary procedure
handbook and supplementary materials for the meeting and make these materials
available at the offices of the Company and the professional share registration agent
commissioned by the Company, or release the materials on the site of the meeting.

(3) The aforementioned notice and announcement shall contain information on the cause of
the session, and may be made in electronic form at the consent of the respondents.

(4) Motions of election or discharge of Directors, Supervisors, alteration of the Articles of
Incorporation, dissolution, merger, split up of the company, or anything as stated in
Article 185-1 of the Company Act, Article 26-1, Article 43-6 of the Securities and
Exchange Act, and Article 56-1 and Article 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the
Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers shall be explicitly stated in the
cause of calling for the session and cannot be proposed as impromptu motions.

(5) For each shareholders’ meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the
meeting by providing the proxy form issued by the Company and stating the scope of
the proxy’s authorization.

(6) A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any given
shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to the Company before 5 days
prior to the date of the shareholders’ meeting. When duplicate proxy forms are delivered,
the one received earliest shall prevail unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous
proxy appointment.

(7) After a proxy form has been delivered to the Company, if the shareholder intends to
attend the meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by correspondence or
electronically, a written notice of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to the Company
before 2 business days prior to the meeting date. If the cancellation notice is submitted
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(8)

after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy shall prevail.

The Company shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during which
shareholders’ attendance registrations will be accepted, the place to register for
attendance and other matters for attention.

The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as stated
in the preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting
commences.

Time of the shareholders’ meeting:

Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. The
number of shares represented by the participating shareholders shall be calculated based on
the sign-in book or the submitted sign-in cards, added with the number of shares with voting
rights that are exercised in writing or in electronic means.

(1)

)

The chair shall call the meeting when the attending shareholders represent a majority of
the total number of issued shares. If the appointed meeting time has passed but the
attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of issued shares,
the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such
postponements, for a combined total of no more than 1 hour, may be made. If the
quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding paragraph,
but the attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total number of issued
shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175 of the Company
Act.

When a tentative resolution is made, if the share amount represented by the attending
shareholder has met the legal requirement, the chair may call the meeting and resubmit
the tentative resolution for a vote by the shareholders meeting.

Preparation before the meeting:

1)

)
®3)

(4)

(5)

The Company shall have a place to register for attendance set up and prepare the
attendance book.

1. The place at which attendance registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and
a sufficient number of suitable personnel assigned to handle the registrations.

2. The attendance book is for the attending shareholders to sign or attending
shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.

The Company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda book,
annual report, attendance card, speaker’s slips, voting slips and other meeting materials.
Shareholders and their proxies (hereinafter referred to collectively as “shareholders™)
shall attend shareholders’ meetings based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other
certificates of attendance. This Corporation may not arbitrarily add requirements for
other documents beyond those showing eligibility to attend presented by shareholders.
Solicitors soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification documents for
verification.

Where the shareholders may be the government or institutions, more than one
representative may be assigned to attend the meeting. Where an institutional shareholder
may be appointed as a proxy to attend the shareholders’ meeting, such institutional
shareholder may appoint only one representative to the meeting.

The Company may appoint the retained Attorney(s)-at-Law, Certified Public
Accountant(s) or relevant personnel to participate in a shareholders’ meeting.

Chair of the meeting:

1)

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting shall be
chaired by the Chairman of the board. When the Chairman of the board is on leave or
for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall
act in place of the Chairman; if there is no Vice Chairman or the Vice Chairman also is
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10.

(2)

on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the Vice Chairman, the
Chairman shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as chair, or, if there are no
managing directors, one of the directors shall be appointed to act as chair. Where the
Chairman does not make such a designation, the managing directors or the directors
shall select from among themselves one person to serve as chair.

When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding
paragraph, the managing director or director shall be one who has held that position for
six months or more and who understands the financial and business conditions of the
Company. The same shall be true for a representative of a juristic person director that
serves as chair.

It is advisable that shareholders’ meetings convened by the board of directors be chaired
by the Chairman of the board in person and attended by a majority of the directors, at
least one supervisor in person, and at least one member of each functional committee on
behalf of the committee. The attendance shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than
the board of directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are two
or more such convening parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among
themselves.

Meeting Procedure:

1)

)

©)

(4)

If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the board of directors, the meeting agenda
shall be set by the board of directors. The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the
agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.
The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders’
meeting convened by a party with the power to convene that is not the board of
directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on
the meeting agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extraordinary motions),
except by a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. If the chair declares the meeting
adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, other members in the board of directors
shall elect one person through a majority vote represented by the attending shareholders
to continuously chair the meeting.

When the meeting is adjourned, except for the matters stated above, shareholders cannot
nominate another chairman or seek another venue for continuation of the meeting.

Notices for proceeding the meeting:

1)
)
©)

(4)

()

When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time
considerations.

The Company’s shareholders’ meetings must be recorded in video or audio, and kept for
at least one year.

\ote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed
by the chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of this
Corporation.

Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the results of the voting, including
the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the meeting,
and a record made of the vote.

If the meeting is not over yet, by resolution of the shareholders present at the meeting,
the chair may resume the meeting within five days without further notice or public
announcement.

Speaking of the present shareholders:

1)

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must fill in on a speaker’s slip, his/her
shareholder account number (or attendance card number), account name and the subject
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11.

12.

13.

of the speech. The order in which shareholders speak will be set by the chair.

(2) A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker’s slip but does not actually
speak shall be deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not
correspond to the subject given on the speaker’s slip, the spoken content shall prevail.

(3) The speech of the attending shareholders may not be interrupted by other shareholders,
unless otherwise with the consent of the chairman and the speaking shareholder. The
chairman must stop the offender from speaking.

(4) Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on
the same proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. When the time is
exceeded, the chair may stop the shareholder from speaking.

(5) When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a
shareholders meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the
same proposal.

(6) After a present shareholder completes speech, the chair may respond either in person or
through a relevant person designated.

(7) The chair may announce to discontinue further discussions if the topic is considered to
have been sufficiently discussed to proceed with the vote.

(8) Where the meeting place may be equipped with sound amplifier equipment, the
Chairman shall stop any speech delivered by shareholders not using the equipment
installed by the company.

Shareholder(s) holding one percent (1%) or more of the total number of outstanding

shares of a company may propose to the company a proposal for discussion at a regular

shareholders’ meeting:

Shareholders holding 1% or more of the total outstanding shares of the Company may

propose motions in a regular session in writing according to Article 172-1 of the Company

Act. The shareholder proposing the motion shall attend the meeting in person or appoint a

proxy to attend the meeting and participate in the discussion of the motion. If the

shareholder’s speech violates the agenda or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the chair
may terminate the speech.

Place of the shareholders meeting:

The venue for a shareholders’ meeting shall be the premises of the Company, or a place

easily accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders’ meeting. The meeting may

begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given to the
opinions of the independent directors with respect to the place and time of the meeting.

\oting of the motion:

(1) The Company may adopt the system of voting by correspondence or electronic means in
a session of the shareholders’ meeting.

(2) A shareholder who exercises his/her/its voting power at a shareholders’ meeting in
writing or by way of electronic transmission as set forth in the preceding paragraph
shall be deemed to have attended the said shareholders meeting in person, but shall be
deemed to have waived his/her/its voting power in respective of any extemporary
motion(s) and/or the amendment(s) to the contents of the original proposal(s) at the said
shareholders’ meeting.

(3) Unless otherwise provided for in the Company Act and the Articles of Incorporation, the
decision of an issue shall be resolved by a majority vote in the meeting which is
attended by shareholders who represent a majority of the total issued shares. An agenda
is considered passed if the chair receives no objection from any attending shareholders.
This voting method shall carry the same effect as the conventional ballot method. At the
time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first
announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending shareholders,
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14.

15.

16.

(4)

followed by a poll of the shareholders. After the conclusion of the meeting, on the same
day it is held, the results for each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for and
against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered into the MOPS.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the
amended or alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order
in which they will be put to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other
proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be required.

Minutes shall be taken of the proceedings of the shareholders’ meeting:

(1)

(2)
©)

Resolutions adopted at a shareholders’ meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting, which shall be affixed with the signature or seal of the chairman of the meeting
and shall be distributed to all shareholders of the company within twenty (20) days after
the close of the meeting.

The distribution of the minutes of shareholders’ meeting as required in the preceding
paragraph may be effected by means of a public notice.

The minutes of shareholders’ meeting shall record the date and place of the meeting, the
name of the chairman, the method of adopting resolutions, and a summary of the
essential points of the proceedings and the results of the meeting. The minutes shall be
kept persistently throughout the life of the company.

Maintaining order at the meeting place:

1)
)

©)

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear identification
cards or arm bands.

The chair may direct the proctors (or security personnel) personnel to help maintain
order at the meeting place. When proctors (or security personnel) help maintain order at
the meeting place, they shall wear an armband bearing the word “Proctor.”

The shareholder (proxy) shall obey the orders given by the chair and proctors (or
security personnel) for maintaining orders. In the event of insubordination to the
correction of the Chairman, obstruction of the progress of the meeting and failure to
take corrective action upon persuasion, the respective shareholder shall be escorted by
the prefect or security personnel to leave the venue on the order of the Chairman.

Implementation and amendment:

1)
)

Any details that are not addressed in this Rules shall be governed by the Company Act
and relevant regulations.

These Rules, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by
shareholders meetings.
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Appendix 5. Election Procedure of Directors and Supervisors

1.  Basis for the establishment
To establish a fair, just, and open procedure for the election of directors and supervisors, the
Company established the Procedure in accordance with Articles 21 and 41 of the “Corporate
Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies.”
2. Principle of compliance
Unless otherwise specified by laws or Articles of Incorporation, the election of directors and
supervisors of the company shall proceed according to the procedure.
3. The criteria that shall be taken into account when electing directors and supervisors:
The overall composition of the directors shall be taken into consideration in the election
of directors.

1)

)

A.

C.

D.

The composition of the board of directors shall be determined by taking diversity

into consideration. It is advisable that an appropriate policy on diversity based on

the company’s business operations, operating dynamics, and development needs
be formulated and include, without being limited to, the following two general
standards:

(A) Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality and culture.

(B) Professional knowledge and skills: A professional background (e.g., law,
accounting, industry, finance, marketing, technology), professional skills,
and industry experience.

All members of the board shall have the knowledge, skills, and experience

necessary to perform their duties. To achieve the ideal goal of corporate

governance, the board of directors shall possess the following abilities:

(A) Ability to make operational judgments.

(B) Ability to perform accounting and financial analysis.

(C) Ability to conduct management administration.

(D) Ability to conduct crisis management.

(E) Knowledge of the industry.

(F) Aninternational market perspective.

(G) Ability to lead.

(H) Ability to make policy decisions.

A spousal relationship or a familial relationship within the second degree of

Kinship may not exist among more than half of the directors of the Company.

The Company shall adjust the composition of the board of directors according to

the results of the performance evaluation.

The qualifications that must be possessed by the supervisor are on the left:

A.
B.
C.
D.
E.

Ethical.

Just when making a judgment.

Professional knowledge.

Experienced.

Capable of reading the financial statements.

In addition to the fact that the supervisor holds the above qualifications, at least one of
the supervisors shall be a financial accounting professional.

The Company shall refer to the provisions on independence provided in the
“Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance
Matters for Public Companies” and appoint a suitable supervisor to enhance the risk
management and financial and operational control of the Company.

At least one (1) supervisor seat shall have no spousal relationship or familial
relationship within the second degree of kinship with another supervisor or a director.
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A supervisor shall not be concurrently a director, a managerial officer or other
staff/employee of the company. At least one (1) of the supervisors shall have a domicile
within the territory of the Republic of China to allow timely performance of supervisory
functions.

Qualifications of independent directors and the scope of the appointment:

(1)

(2)

The qualifications of the independent director shall be in accordance with Articles 2, 3
and 4 of the “Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and
Compliance Matter for Public Companies”.

The appointment of the independent director shall be in accordance with Articles 5, 6, 7,
8 and 9 of the “Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and
Compliance Matter for Public Companies” and shall be implemented pursuant to Article
24 of the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEXx Listed
Companies.”

The appointment directors and supervisors

1)
(2)

©)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

The appointment of independent directors shall adopt the candidates nomination
system pursuant to Article 192-1 of the Company Act.

To examine the qualification, education background and past work experience of the
director and supervisor candidates, and whether the things matters in Article 30 of the
Company Act happen, the Company shall not randomly add other qualification
documents to be examined. The result of the review shall be provided to the
shareholders for reference to elect suitable directors and supervisors.

When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a director for
any reason, the company shall hold a director by-election at the next following
shareholders’ meeting. When the number of directors falls short by one-third of the
total number prescribed by the articles of incorporation, the company shall convene a
special shareholders’ meeting within 60 days of the occurrence of that fact to hold a
director by-election.

When the number of independent directors falls below that required under the proviso
of Article 14-2, paragraph 1 of the Securities and Exchange Act, or the related
provisions of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation rules governing the review of
listings, or subparagraph 8 of the “Standards for Determining Unsuitability for GTSM
Listing under Article 10, Paragraph 1 of the GreTai Securities Market Rules Governing
the Review of Securities for Trading on the GTSM?”, a by-election shall be held at the
next shareholders meeting to fill the vacancy. When the independent directors are
dismissed en masse, a special shareholders meeting shall be called within 60 days
from the date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the vacancies.

When the number of supervisors falls below that prescribed in this Corporation’s
articles of incorporation due to the dismissal of a supervisor for any reason, a
by-election to fill the vacancy should ideally be held at the next shareholders’ meeting.
When the supervisors are dismissed en masse, a special shareholders meeting shall be
called within 60 days from the date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the
vacancies.

The cumulative single-registered voting method shall be used for election of the
directors and supervisors at this Corporation. Each share will have voting rights in
number equal to the directors or supervisors to be elected, and may be cast for a single
candidate or split among multiple candidates.

The board of directors shall prepare separate ballots for directors and supervisors in
numbers corresponding to the directors or supervisors to be elected. The number of
voting rights associated with each ballot shall be specified on the ballots, which shall
then Dbe distributed to the attending shareholders at the shareholders meeting.
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(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots may be used instead of recording the
names of voting shareholders.
The number of directors and supervisors will be as specified in this Corporation’s
articles of incorporation, with voting rights separately calculated for independent and
non-independent director positions. Those receiving ballots representing the highest
numbers of voting rights will be elected sequentially according to their respective
numbers of votes. When two or more persons receive the same number of votes, thus
exceeding the specified number of positions, they shall draw lots to determine the
winner, with the chair drawing lots on behalf of any person not in attendance.
Before the election begins, the chair shall appoint a number of persons with
shareholder status to perform the respective duties of vote monitoring and counting
personnel. The ballot boxes shall be prepared by the board of directors and publicly
checked by the vote monitoring personnel before voting commences.
If a candidate is a shareholder, a voter must enter the candidate’s account name and
shareholder account number in the “candidate” column of the ballot; for a
non-shareholder, the voter shall enter the candidate’s full name and identity card
number.  However, when the candidate is a governmental organization or
juristic-person shareholder, the name of the governmental organization or
juristic-person shareholder shall be entered in the column for the candidate’s account
name in the ballot paper or both the name of the governmental organization or
juristic-person shareholder and the name of its representative may be entered. When
there are multiple representatives, the names of each respective representative shall be
entered.

A ballot is invalid under any of the following circumstances:

The ballot was not prepared by the board of directors.

A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box.

The writing is unclear and indecipherable or has been altered.

The candidate whose name is entered in the ballot is a shareholder, but the

candidate’s account name and shareholder account number do not conform with

those given in the shareholder register, or the candidate whose name is entered in
the ballot is a non-shareholder and a cross-check shows that the candidate’s
name and identity card number do not match.

E. Ballots that contain writings other than the candidate’s name and shareholder 1D
(or identity document number).

F.  The name of the candidate entered in the ballot is identical to that of another
shareholder, but no shareholder account number or identity card number is
provided in the ballot to identify such individual.

The voting rights shall be calculated on site immediately after the end of the poll, and

the results of the calculation, including the list of persons elected as directors or

supervisors and the numbers of votes with which they were elected, shall be
announced by the chair on the site.

The ballots for the aforementioned election shall be kept in the box, sealed and signed

by the witness and retained for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a

lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained

until the conclusion of the litigation.

The board of directors of this Corporation shall issue notifications to the persons

elected as directors or supervisors.

COow>

Implementation and amendment
These Procedures, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after approval by a
shareholders’ meeting.
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Appendix 6. Shareholding of All Directors and Supervisors
The paid-up capital of the Company is NT$425,755,000. There are 42,575,500 shares issued.

1.

Pursuant to the “Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share Ownership
Ratios at Public Companies,” the minimum shares possessed by directors and supervisors of
the Company shall be 3,600,000 shares and 360,000 shares. The total shares held by directors
and supervisors of the Company are in compliance with the regulation.

As of April 20, 2020, the day on which transactions of shares were stopped, the roster of
shareholders indicated that all the directors and supervisors of the Company had the following
quantity of shares in holding:

Title Name Number of shares held %
Chairman Shih-Fang Liao 3,437,142 8.07%
Director Tsung-Hsien Wu 373,406 0.88%
Director Mei-Hui Lin 168,470 0.40%
Director Cheng Yu Investment Ltd. 2,254,024 5.29%
Director Chung-Ping Wang 0 0.00%
Indgpendent Chi-Jui Lien 0 0.00%
Director
Indgpendent Fu-Mei Chen 0 0.00%
Director
Total 6,233,042 14.64%
Supervisor Rui Qi Investment Ltd. 483,940 1.14%
Supervisor Mu-Chuan Huang 0 0.00%
Supervisor Chin-Han Chen 1,341 0.00%
Total 485,281 1.14%
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